
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023 

 5:30 PM 
 

THIS MEETING MAY BE ATTENDED IN PERSON AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE BOARDROOM AT 61750 
CHOLLITA RD., JOSHUA TREE, CA 92252, BY PHONE AT 1-669-900-6833, OR BY VIDEO CONFERENCE.  
JOIN BY ZOOM: HTTPS://US02WEB.ZOOM.US/J/6175061750?PWD=EDJGDTBBTLBRKZLBUKXAANRKQ1K2DZ09 

Meeting ID: 617 506 1750 Passcode: 61750 
OUR MISSION, VISION, AND VALUES 

Mission Statement  
To provide, protect, and maintain Joshua Tree's water - our vital community resource. 

Vision Statement  
To achieve excellence in all District endeavors. 

Values  
The community of Joshua Tree has entrusted the Board of Directors and employees of Joshua Basin Water District 
with its most valuable natural resource, its groundwater. As stewards of the community water supply, we oversee 
this critical natural resource to ensure current and future water reliability. Dedicated to this purpose, we embrace 
these important values:  
• Integrity – To consistently earn our customers’ trust by prioritizing the needs of the community…doing the 

right thing for the right reason. 
• Transparency – To openly and honestly share information about our operations with the public. 
• Respect – To treat the residents of Joshua Tree, and all those contacted in the course of business, with high 

esteem and regard. 
• Fiscal Responsibility – To manage all resources as if they were our own, whether revenues, assets, or water 

supply, in a conscientious and appropriate manner. 
• Accountability – To take responsibility for our decisions and actions in managing this essential resource. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2.  DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

3.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

4.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
This is the time set aside for public comment on any District related matter, whether appearing on the 
agenda or not. Under provisions of the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from taking action on items 
not listed on the agenda. At the discretion of the Board President, however, comments on a particular 
Agenized item may be deferred until that item is heard. Please state your name and limit your 
comments to 3 minutes. 

5.  CONSENT CALENDAR  
Consent calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, to be acted upon by the 
Board at one time, without discussion. If a board member would like an item to be handled separately, 
it will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate action. 

A. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 01.10.23 
B. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 01.18.23 
C. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 02.01.23 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6175061750?pwd=eDJGdTBBTlBRKzlBUkxaanRKQ1k2dz09


6. ITEM(S) PULLED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR FOR DISCUSSION

7. ACTION CALENDAR

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER INCREASES TO WATER RATES AND CHARGES
Recommend the Board take the following actions:

1. Accept and file Water Rate Study report.

2. Hold public hearing to consider rate increase.

The public hearing should be conducted as follows:
A. HEARING OPENED BY PRESIDING OFFICER
B. STAFF/CONSULTANT PRESENTATIONS
C. QUESTIONS OF STAFF/CONSULTANTS BY BOARD
D. RECEIVE PUBLIC TESTIMONY
E. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

3. Protests should be tabulated and reported.

4. Questions of Staff/Consultants by Board.

B. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 23-1052, AS PRESENTED OR AMENDED AT DIRECTION OF 
THE BOARD, TO ADOPT RATE INCREASE, TAKE RELATED ACTIONS, AND MAKE RELATED 
FINDINGS.

8. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS

A. DIRECTOR REPORTS AND COMMENTS
For informational purposes only on subjects not covered by the agenda and no action to be 
taken. The Board may provide staff with requests for future agenda items.

9. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS DATE/TIME ATTENDEE(S) 

A. MWA – Board Meeting 02/23/23 9:30 am Jarlsberg 
B. JBWD – Board Meeting 03/01/23 5:30 pm All 

10. ADJOURNMENT

INFORMATION 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during the discussion of that item. 

Availability of agenda materials:  Materials related to any item on this Agenda submitted to the District Board of 
Directors of Committee Members after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection at the 
District’s office, 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252, during normal business hours. All documents supporting 
this agenda are available on the District website www.jbwd.com, subject to the staff’s availability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 

Reasonable Accommodation: Any person with a disability, who requires accommodation to view the agenda or to 
participate in the public comment portion of the Board meeting, should direct such requests to Sarah Johnson, 
Secretary of the Board of Directors, at 760-366-8438. Please allow three business days for your request to be 
processed. Requests must be received at least seventy-two (72) hours before the scheduled meeting.  

Disruptive Conduct: If any meeting of the District is willfully disrupted by a person or by a group of persons so as to 
render the orderly conduct of the meeting impossible, a meeting may be recessed or the person or persons willfully 
disrupting the meeting may be ordered to leave the meeting. Disruptive conduct includes addressing the Board or 
Committee without first being recognized, not addressing the subject before the Board or Committee, repetitively 
addressing the same subject, failing to relinquish the podium when requested to do so, or otherwise preventing the 
Board or Committee from conducting its meeting in an orderly manner. Your cooperation is appreciated. 

2

http://www.jbwd.com/
mailto:customerservice@jbwd.com


JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SPECIAL JOINT BOARD OF DIRECTORS & CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL WORKSHOP  

 MEETING MINUTES 
JANUARY 10, 2023 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Floen called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 

 
2. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – Directors Floen, Doolittle, Jarlsberg, and Delph present. Director Short was 

absent. 
 

STAFF PRESENT – 
Sarah Johnson, General Manager, Anne Roman, Director of Finance, Autumn Rich, Accounting 
Supervisor, Jeremiah Nazario, Interim Director of Operations, Brandon Warner, CIRP Supervisor, Steve 
Corbin, Production Supervisor, Lisa Thompson, Lead CSR. 

 
CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL PRESENT –  
Chairperson David Carrillo, Hannah Campbell, Frank Coate, Glen Harris, Karen Morton, Karen Tracy, and 
Karen Sernka. 

 
CONSULTANTS PRESENT –  
Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA –  

1st - DELPH 
2nd - DOOLITTLE 
4/0/0 motion carried to approve agenda. 
 

4. RATE STUDY WORKSHOP - 
The rate study workshop opened following President Floen’s explanation of the meeting structure, 
purpose, and schedule. General Manager Johnson provided a recap on the District’s future needs, 
Director of Operations Nazario provided information about operational needs, and Director of Finance, 
Roman provided a financial overview. 
 
The meeting recessed at 5:34 pm, and the public participated in thirty-minute breakout sessions led by 
the Citizens Advisory Council. The public provided input and feedback and were provided the 
opportunity to ask questions.  
 
President Floen called the meeting back to order at 6:17 pm. Consultant Radnich provided a summarized 
report to the board on the finding of the breakout sessions.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON RATE STUDY - BENEFITS: 

  
• In-house performed Capital Improvement Replacement Projects (CIRP) save money that can fund 

purchase of extra recharge water. 
• Praise for JBWD’s employees and water quality. 
• A member of the public stated an opinion that sometimes contracting out—which costs more up 

front can be more cost effective in the long run. 
• Some felt that the rate increase would allow funding to fix our infrastructure now, saving costs in 

the long run with inflation. 
• Fixing our infrastructure now would ensure better water quality for the future. 

 

 

3



PUBLIC COMMENTS ON RATE STUDY - DISADVANTAGES AND GENERAL COMMENTS  
 

• Three of four breakout session groups stated that a rate increase is unaffordable to many families 
and would impact the quality of life for many residents in Joshua Tree. 

• Two of four breakouts session groups declared that Short-Term Rentals that are located in 
residential areas, are not treated as commercial enterprises, and that they do not feel compelled to 
conserve water like actual residents do. 

• One breakout session group felt it was unfair that JBWD’s rates were higher than any other local 
water provider in the area and that raising rates could not be justified. 

• One group challenged the proposed rate increase against increasing inflation rates—opining that 
inflation may make our rates unaffordable in the near future. 

• One attendee proposed that the local customers do not want tiered rate and it would be fairer to 
impose a flat rate. 

• Concerns were voiced that it appears that commercial meters were getting a much better deal for 
water—and wanted to know if residents could switch to a commercial meter to avoid these high 
residential water meter rates. 

• A request was made for better subsidies to help those on fixed incomes. 
• Some felt that much of the information presented before the workshop was information the public 

did not have and that JBWD needs to communicate better on these issues. 
 
All directors in attendance thanked the public for their participation and expressed understanding of the 
public’s comments and concerns. Each director made a report. No action was taken. 

 
5. ADJOURNMENT - 

1st - DELPH 
2nd - DOOLITTLE 
President Floen called adjournment at 7:00 pm. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

       
Sarah Johnson, General Manager & Board Secretary  

4



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 MEETING MINUTES 
JANUARY 18, 2023 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Floen called the board meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 

2. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – All Directors are present. 
 

STAFF PRESENT – 
Sarah Johnson, General Manager, Anne Roman, Director of Finance, Autumn Rich, Accounting 
Supervisor, Jeremiah Nazario, Interim Director of Operations, Lisa Thompson, Lead CSR. 

 
CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL PRESENT –  
Vice Chairperson Frank Coate 

 
CONSULTANTS PRESENT –  
Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant, Jeff Hoskinson, Legal Counsel 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA –  

1st - Delph 
2nd -Doolittle 
5/0/0 motion carried to approve the agenda. 

 
4. STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS - 

1st - Delph 
2nd -Short 
5/0/0 motion carried to approve the state of emergency findings.  

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT – none 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR –  

A. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 11.02.22 
B. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 11.09.22 
C. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 12.07.22 
D. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 12.14.22 
E. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 12.21.22 

1st - Jarlsberg 
2nd -Doolittle 
5/0/0 motion carried to approve draft minutes with the following correction: 

Item A - DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 11.01.22 – change the date from 11.01.22 to 11.02.22. 
Jarlsberg requested to pull items: 

6F- Check Register August 2022 and 6G- Check Register September 2022. 
 

7. ITEM(S) PULLED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR FOR DISCUSSION 
6F. Check Register – August 2022  
1st - Jarlsberg 
2nd -Short 
5/0/0 motion carried to receive and file the August 2022 check register. 
 

5



6G. Check Register September 2022. 
1st - Jarlsberg 
2nd -Doolittle 
5/0/0 motion carried to receive and file the September 2022 check register. 
 

8. ACTION CALENDAR 
A. RESOLUTION NO. 23-1051 APPRECIATION AND RECOGNITION FOR JIM VENTURA 

1st - Doolittle 
2nd -Jarlsberg 
5/0/0 motion carried to approve Resolution 23-1051 
No public comment  

 
 

B. 1ST QUARTER ENDING 09/30/22 FINANCIAL REPORT 
Director Floen asked about development fees, and Director of Finance Roman discussed that water 
capacity hasn't been updated since 2006. The fees cover costs for development.  

Director Doolittle had questions about the definition of a bond call. She also had questions and 
comments on the urban water management plan.   

Director Jarlsberg had questions about wastewater capacity for commercial. Director of Finance, Roman 
explained that the fees are for the wastewater assessment area of the district. Fees are paid when 
property owners purchase a new water meter in the designated area. But the fees are only a small 
deposit on much higher future anticipated costs.  

1st - Delph 
2nd -Jarlsberg 
5/0/0 motion carried to approve the financial report.    
No public comment 
 

C. CONSIDER SELECTION METHOD FOR AUDIT FIRM FOR FISCAL YEAR 22/23 AND BEYOND 
1st - Delph 
2nd - Doolittle 
5/0/0 motion directing the General Manager to solicit a contract proposal from Fedak & Brown for 
auditing purposes. The board noted that Fedak & Brown is changing their name to CJ Brown & Co. 
No public comment 

 

9. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS 
A. PUBLIC OUTREACH REPORT 

Consultant Radnich announced the following events:  
 MWA Seed to Salad virtual 12-week course - March 2023.  

Wildcrafting Course – May 2023.  
Native Plant Sale - March 26, 2023.  
Docent meeting - February 20, 2023.  
January Drought message at farmer market “Slow the flow and reduce usage.  
New AWAC 2023 calendars have arrived. 

 
 
 
 
 

6



B. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 
General Manager, Johnson announced the following: 

Introduction of David Shook, the district’s new Director of Administration. 
Promotion of Lisa Thompson to Executive Assistant. 

 
C. DIRECTOR REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Delph attended MWA board meeting. 

                                             

10. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS 
No changes per agenda.  

 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
1st - Delph 
2nd - short 
President Floen called the board to adjourn at 7:39 pm 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

        
Sarah Johnson, General Manager & Board Secretary  

7



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 1, 2023 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Floen called the board meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 

2. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – All Directors were present.  
 
               STAFF PRESENT – 

Sarah Johnson, General Manager, Anne Roman, Director of Finance, Jeremiah Nazario, Interim Director 
of Operations, Lisa Thompson, Executive Assistant. 

 
CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL PRESENT – none 

 
CONSULTANTS PRESENT –  
Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant, Jeff Hoskinson, Legal Counsel 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

1st - Floen 
2nd – Doolittle  
5/0/0 motion carried to approve the agenda with the removal of the consent calendar as it was carried 
forward from the 01.18.23 meeting. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT   

A. Deb Bollinger spoke about the upcoming rate hearing and requested that the board consider adding 
additional meetings. She expressed concerns about not having enough outreach regarding the rate 
study. 

B. Douglas Buckley does not necessarily oppose the rate study but wants to ensure that pipe is being 
installed. He also expressed concern about the meeting time being at 5:30 pm.  

C. Tom Baker provided a written statement on proposed rate increases. He does not favor scenario A as 
proposed by the rate study and would prefer scenario C. 

 
5. STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS  

1st - Delph 
2nd - Doolittle 
5/0/0 motion carried to approve the state of emergency findings. 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR  
Removed from agenda. 

 
7. ACTION CALENDAR  

A. CUSTOMER SERVICE POSITIONS REEVALUATION 
1st – Jarlsberg 
2nd – Delph 
5/0/0 motion carried to approve and adopt the revised Customer Service Job Description I/II series, new 
Billing & Customer Service Supervisor job description, and to remove the AR Technician position 
beginning FY 23/24. 
 
 
 

8



8. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS  
 

A. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 
General Manager Johnson reported the following:  
The glass for customer service is scheduled to be installed on February 6, 2023. While we have served all 
customers who have come to the door over the past two years, we are excited to fully reopen after the 
glass is installed. Johnson also reported that while being short-staffed and wearing many hats, we have 
still provided over 20 opportunities to inform the public about the rate study. We agree that there is 
always room for improvement, but everyone is doing a great job with the resources at hand. 
 

B. DIRECTOR REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
Director Doolittle commented on the MWA board meeting strategic plan and remote meetings. She also 
commented on the JBWD’s Water Resources & Operations meeting, commenting on 156 dig alerts & 
510 service orders that occurred in November & December 2022. 
 
Director Jarlsberg and Director Short attended the ASBCSD dinner presentation. Director Short 
commented on the high-speed railway proposed to provide service from Rancho Cucamonga to Las 
Vegas. He also discussed the future zero emissions vehicle transition. 

 

9. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS  
Director Short plans to attend the MWA Tac Meeting on 2/2/23 remotely. All other meetings will be 
attended as scheduled. 

 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT  
1st – Delph  
2nd -Doolittle 
President Floen called adjournment at 6:29 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

        
Sarah Johnson, General Manager & Board Secretary  

9



 

Agenda Item No: 7A 

Board of Directors Staff Report 
MEETING DATE: 02/15/2023 
PRESENTED BY: Anne Roman, Director of Finance 
TOPIC: PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER INCREASES TO WATER RATES AND 

CHARGES 
RECOMMENDATION: 1) Accept and file the Water Rate Study report submitted by Bartle Wells 

Associates. 
2) Hold public hearing to consider rate increases. 
3) Consider approving Resolution 23-1052 implementing rate increases, 

Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges, and amendment to 
Rules & Regulations 

  
  
ANALYSIS:  
In February 2022, the District contracted with Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) to conduct a Rate Study, 
as the prior 2018-adopted rate increases came to an end.  As of August, 2022, the District began 
conducting public Board meetings, often including the Citizens Advisory Council (CAC), and conducting 
public outreach to solicit community input.  In total, eight meetings, including today’s public hearing, 
were held, along with various other forms of proactive outreach.  In the various meetings BWA, Legal 
counsel, District Staff, Directors, and CAC members considered several rate scenario options and 
addressed many ideas and questions, discussing legal and practical constraints.  
 
The objectives of this Rate Study are to ensure that rates: 
 

• Recover the costs of providing water service, including operating, maintenance, 
and capital improvement funding needs; 

• Are fair and equitable to all customers; 
• Are easy to understand and implement; 
• Include less increases to the fixed Basic Monthly Fees with more increases to 

Monthly Water Flow Charges based on usage; 
• Reflect the cost of providing service and comply with the substantive 

requirements of the California Constitution, Article 13D, Section 6 (established by 
Proposition 218) and the general mandate of Article 10, Section 2; 

• Support JBWD’s long-term operational and financial stability. 
 
The proposed maximum rates resulting from the Study focus on significant funding increases for 
Capital replacement of aging infrastructure identified in the District’s 2015 Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) and Capital Improvement Replacement Program (CIRP) program, construction of Chromium 6 
treatment facilities/operations in response to the State’s anticipated regulations, increasing reserves 
for CIRP heavy equipment depreciation, reports and studies (many mandatory), and keeping up with 
inflation. In addition, Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges have been developed to support 

10



financial stability and ensure adequate funding for District operations during periods of water 
shortages, mandatory cutbacks, or reduced water sales.   
 
The required Proposition 218 notices informing of the proposed maximum rates and providing 
instructions and opportunity for protest were mailed to all 5,676 property owners with paid water 
service.  The District also voluntarily mailed an additional 1,945 notices to customers where different 
than property owners.  However, the protest process allows only one protest per parcel.  Per the 
California Constitution, if there is a majority protest to the rate increases, rates may not be increased.  
The protests will be tabulated during the public hearing tonight in accordance with the guidelines in 
Resolution 22-1050.  
 
Please take the following action: 1) Accept and file the Water Rate Study report, 2) Hold the public 
hearing as outlined on the Agenda, and 3) Consider approving Resolution 23-1052 implementing rate 
increases, Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges, and amendment to Rules & Regulations.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM: 2.8 Continue to monitor and update rates and fees to ensure financial 

viability. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Based on the 22/23 Operating budget, revenues are expected to increase 
from $8,769,569 to $10,134,000, providing over 76% additional funding in 
this first year for capital replacement, capital-related reserves, reports and 
studies reserves, and projected Chromium 6 costs. By 23/24, capital 
replacement funding matches the pre-inflation cost of the District’s 2015 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  

 

11



2023 Water Rate Study

January 2023

FINAL DRAFT
12



 

Bartle Wells Associates 
2625 Alcatraz Ave, #602 

Berkeley, CA 94705 
Tel: 510.653.3399 

www.bartlewells.com 
 

2023 Water Rate Study 

January 2023 

Prepared by: 
 

13



 
 
 
 
 
 
January 31, 2023 
 
 
Joshua Basin Water District 
P.O. Box 675 / 61750 Chollita Road 
Joshua Tree, CA  92252 
 
 
Bartle Wells Associates is pleased to submit the attached 2023 Water Rate Study.  The study 
develops water rates designed to fund JBWD’s projected costs of providing service over the next 
five years and fairly apportion costs to JBWD customers.  The proposed rates were developed 
with substantial input from JBWD and the District’s Citizens Advisory Council and are phased in 
over the next five years to help meet JBWD’s financial needs while aiming to minimize the annual 
impact on ratepayers.    
 
As noted in the report, JBWD is facing a number of financial challenges in upcoming years.  The 
proposed rate increases are needed to provide adequate funding for future operations, 
rehabilitation and replacement of aging water system infrastructure, help fund the construction 
and operation of new Chromium 6 water treatment facilities to meet pending new state 
regulatory requirements, and keep up with cost inflation.   
 
The proposed water rates are maximum rates that JBWD can adopt and levy. The District 
anticipates reevaluating rates and finances in future years with the goal of only implementing  
rate increases as needed.  The report also develops proposed new Water Shortage Contingency 
Rate Surcharges designed to support financial stability and help ensure adequate funding for 
water utility operations during periods of water shortages, mandatory cutbacks, or significant 
reductions in water sales. 
 
I enjoyed working with JBWD on this assignment and appreciate the ongoing input and assistance 
received from JBWD staff, Board Members, and the Citizens Advisory Council.  Please contact me 
anytime if you have questions about this report or other issues related to rates and finances. 
 
BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 
 

 
 
 

Alex Handlers, CIPMA   
Principal/Vice-President 
 
 
 

2625 Alcatraz Ave, #602 
Berkeley, CA 94705 

Tel 510 653 3399  
www.bartlewells.com 

14



 

 
 

 
 
 
  

Current
Water Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
Rates 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

BASIC MONTHLY FEE
Fixed monthly charge based on meter size

Meter Size
3/4 & 1 inch $41.35 $43.40 $45.55 $47.80 $50.20 $52.70
1-1/2 inches 137.83 144.67 151.83 159.33 167.33 175.67
2 inches 220.53 231.47 242.93 254.93 267.73 281.07
3 inches 413.50 434.00 455.50 478.00 502.00 527.00

MONTHLY WATER FLOW CHARGES
Billed based on metered water use, as measured in units of one hundred cubic feet ($/hcf)

For 3/4" and 1" Meters
Tier 1 0 - 5 units $6.20 $7.80 $9.50 $11.00 $12.30 $13.50
Tier 2 5.01 - 10 units 7.70 9.50 11.30 12.90 14.25 15.50
Tier 3 10.01 - 20 units 9.20 11.20 13.10 14.80 16.20 17.50
Tier 4 20.01 + units 10.70 12.90 14.90 16.70 18.15 19.50

For 1-1/2", 2" and 3" Meters
Unit rate for all water use $7.70 $9.50 $11.30 $12.90 $14.25 $15.50____________
Note: 1 unit = one hundred cubic feet (hcf), or approximately 748 gallons.

PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION CHARGES
Fixed monthly charge based on size of service connection
Service Size Capacity
2 inches 1 160 gpm $22.05 $23.15 $24.29 $25.49 $26.77 $28.11
3 inches 0 300 gpm 41.34 43.40 45.55 47.80 50.20 52.70
4 inches 6 500 gpm 68.91 72.34 75.91 79.66 83.66 87.84
6 inches 4 1,000 gpm 137.81 144.69 151.81 159.31 167.31 175.69
8 inches 7 1,600 gpm 220.50 231.50 242.90 254.90 267.70 281.10

Proposed Maximum Water Rates
Projected Rates Effective

15



 

 
 

 
 

Water Shortage Contingency Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 5 Stage 6

Moderate Severe Critical Emergency Catastrophic
Shortage Shortage Shortage Shortage Failure

Water Shortage or Mandated Reduction 11% - 20% 21% - 30% 31% - 40% 41% - 50% > 50%

Maximum Rate Surcharge ($/hcf)
Effective On or After

Mar-1, 2023 $1.32 $2.62 $4.33 $6.65 $8.26 
Jan-1, 2024 1.67 3.29 5.42 8.31 10.30 
Jan-1, 2025 1.99 3.90 6.39 9.80 12.11 
Jan-1, 2026 2.26 4.41 7.22 11.06 13.66 
Jan-1, 2027 2.51 4.89 7.99 12.23 15.09 

Note: 1 unit = one hundred cubic feet (hcf), or approximately 748 gallons.

Proposed Maximum Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges

16



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES   
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1 Background & Objectives ....................................................................................................... 1  

1.1 Background  .......................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Rate Study Objectives............................................................................................................. 2 
1.3 Rate Study Process ................................................................................................................. 3 

2 Water Rates, Customers & Finances ....................................................................................... 4  
2.1 Current Water Rates............................................................................................................... 4 
2.2 Financial Overview ................................................................................................................. 5 
2.3 Financial Challenges / Key Drivers of Rate Increases ............................................................. 6 
 2.3.1 Replacement of Aging Infrastructure and Undersized Water Pipelines .................... 6 
 2.3.2 New California Chromium 6 Regulations ................................................................... 6 
 2.3.3 Support Balanced Budgets & Keep Up with Cost Inflation ........................................ 7 

3 Water Customers & Use ......................................................................................................... 8 
3.1 Water Customers ................................................................................................................... 8 
3.2 Historical Water Use ............................................................................................................. 10 
3.3 Water Use per Tier for 3/4” & 1” Meters ............................................................................. 13 

4 Legal requirements & Rate Methodology ............................................................................. 14 
4.1 Constitutional Rate Requirements ....................................................................................... 14 
 4.1.1 Article 10, Section 2 ................................................................................................. 14 
 4.1.2 Article 13D, Section 6 ............................................................................................... 14 
4.2 Rate-Setting Methodology ................................................................................................... 15 

5 Financial Projections ............................................................................................................ 17 
5.1 Financial Projections Overview ............................................................................................ 17 
5.2 Key Assumptions .................................................................................................................. 17 
5.3 Fund Reserves & Reserve Target .......................................................................................... 18 
5.4 Financial Projections ............................................................................................................ 18 
5.5 Projected Rate Increases ...................................................................................................... 22 

6 Rate Derivation .................................................................................................................... 23 
6.1 Rate Structure Modifications ............................................................................................... 23 
 6.1.1 Less Increase to Fixed Meter Charges ..................................................................... 23 
 6.1.2 More Increases to Water Usage Charges ................................................................ 23 
 6.1.3 Widening the Differences in Rates Between Tiers .................................................. 24 
6.2 Fixed & Variable Cost Recovery............................................................................................ 24 
6.3 Fixed Rate Derivation ........................................................................................................... 27 
6.4 Projected Water Use ............................................................................................................ 28 
6.5 Water Flow Charge Derivation ............................................................................................. 29 
6.6 Private Fire Protection Charges ............................................................................................ 33 

7 Proposed Rates & Impacts ................................................................................................... 34 
7.1 Proposed Maximum Rates ................................................................................................... 34 
7.2 Water Rate Impacts .............................................................................................................. 35 

8 Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges ...................................................................... 37 
8.1 Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges .................................................................... 37 

  

Appendix A - Financial & Rate Scenarios 
Appendix B - Propositon 218 Notice of Proposed Water Rate Increase 

17



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  1 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

1 BACKGROUND & OBJECTIVES 

1.1 Background 
Joshua Basin Water District (JBWD or District) currently provides water service to roughly 5,600 
homes, businesses, and properties within a 96-square-mile service area in the community of Joshua 
Tree, California.  The District is located about 125 miles east of Los Angeles in San Bernardino County, 
to the north of Joshua Tree National Park.  JBWD was formed in 1963 and is governed by a five-
member Board of Directors elected from the community. 
 

JBWD owns and operates roughly 310 miles of water system pipelines, 5 wells, 17 water storage tanks, 
11 booster stations and a groundwater recharge facility.  Roughly 164 miles of JBWD’s water pipelines 
were installed 40 to 75 years ago and are approaching the end of their useful lives.  Other facilities 
including booster pumps, wells and water tanks are aging and need to be refurbished in upcoming years.   
 

An engineering analysis of the water system developed by Dudek Engineers and subsequently 
updated by District staff identifies the need for approximately $2.5 million (current $) of capital 
improvement funding each year for the next 30 years to gradually replace aging infrastructure, 
address current deficiencies, and improve system reliability.  In recent years, the District established 
a Capital Improvement & Replacement Program (CIRP) with in-house staffing to help minimize costs 
and reduce the need for more expensive contracting. 
 

JBWD is financially self-supporting and relies primarily on revenues from water service charges to 
fund the costs of operating, maintaining, and replacing aging water system infrastructure to support 
safe and reliable service.  The District has historically provided strong financial management via 
gradual annual rate increases.  JBWD last adopted a series of 5 years of rate increases in 2018 with 
the last increase effective January 1, 2022.  These increases were designed to take substantial steps 
in the right direction with the understanding that significant additional rate increases would be 
needed to ultimately support the District’s operating and capital improvement funding needs 
including providing adequate funding for replacement of aging infrastructure and anticipated 
Chromium 6 treatment.  
 

JBWD relies on groundwater for 100% of the community’s water supply.  Local water demand exceeds 
the level of natural groundwater recharge.  Historically, this resulted in ongoing decreases in local 
groundwater levels.  Starting in 2015, JBWD began purchasing and importing water from Mojave 
Water Agency via the 71-mile Morongo Basin Pipeline to help recharge the local groundwater basin 
and reduce further groundwater depletion.  While the District is not in any imminent danger of over-
depleting its groundwater resources, JBWD anticipates continuing its practice of importing water to 
support the long-term sustainability of the District’s groundwater supply.  

18



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  2 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

The District also anticipates needing to fund treatment facilities for Chromium 6, a naturally occurring 
chemical in the District’s groundwater that is a suspected carcinogen.  Concentration levels in the 
District’s groundwater are substantially below current federal and statewide standards.  However, 
California’s State Water Resources Control Board is in the process of establishing new, substantially 
more-stringent regulations that would require the District to install and operate new Chromium 6 
treatment facilities.  Preliminary cost estimates for the new treatment facilities are in the $18 million 
range with operating expenses estimated at $750,000 per year. The District is searching for the most 
cost-effective treatment technology and is seeking grant funding to help offset the costs of new 
treatment facilities. 

1.2 Rate Study Objectives 
In 2022, JBWD retained Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) to help the District evaluate financial scenarios 
and develop a long-term financial plan and water rate study.  BWA developed the District’s prior rate 
study in 2018.  Key goals and objectives of this rate study include developing water rates that: 

 Recover the costs of providing water service, including operating, maintenance, 
and capital improvement funding needs; 

 Are fair and equitable to all customers; 

 Are easy to understand and implement; 

 Include less increases to the fixed Basic Monthly Fees with more increases to 
Monthly Water Flow Charges based on usage; 

 Reflect the cost of providing service and comply with the substantive 
requirements of the California Constitution, Article 13D, Section 6 (established by 
Proposition 218) and the general mandate of Article 10, Section 2; 

 Support JBWD’s long-term operational and financial stability. 
 
Final recommendations were developed with substantial input from the District and the District’s 
Citizens Advisory Council (CAC), a group of community members that has been advising the Board of 
Directors and providing community input on a wide range of policy issues since 2005. 
 
This report summarizes findings and recommendations and develops water rate projections for the 
next five years.  The report also develops new Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges that can 
be implemented to support financial stability and ensure adequate funding for District operations 
during periods of water shortages, mandatory cutbacks, or reduced water sales.  

19



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  3 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

1.3 Rate Study Process 
The rates recommendations presented in this report were developed via a process that incorporated 
substantial input from District staff as well as a series of meetings held to gain input from the District’s 
Finance Committee, Board of Directors and Citizens Advisory Council.   
 

 Aug-31, 2022 Board Meeting - Water rate study introduction, received initial  
   input on study objectives and key issues. 

 Sep-13, 2022 CAC Meeting – Discussed preliminary findings and alternatives,     
    received preliminary input. 

 Oct-12, 2022 Board Meeting with CAC participation – Reviewed draft rate    
   increase scenarios, discussed alternatives and received input. 

 Nov-8, 2022  CAC Meeting – Reviewed draft rate increase scenarios, discussed  
   alternatives and received additional input. 

 Nov-9, 2022 Board Meeting with CAC participation – Reviewed draft rate  
   increase scenarios, discussed alternatives and received additional  
  input.  

 Dec-14, 2022 Board Meeting – Presented recommendations and received  
  Board direction to mail Proposition 218 Notices and set a  
  Public Hearing to consider approval of proposed rates. 

 Jan-10, 2023 Community Workshop at the Joshua Tree Community Center. 

 Feb-15, 2023 Public Hearing and Board consideration of resolution adopting  
  maximum proposed rates 

 
The proposed rates are maximum rates that JBWD will consider authorizing. The District anticipates 
reevaluating rates and finances in future years with the goal of only implementing  rate increases as 
needed.  In accordance with  Proposition 218, the District cannot implement rates that exceed the 
levels adopted pursuant to the Proposition 218 process but can implement rate increases that are 
below the maximum authorized levels. 

20



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  4 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

2 WATER RATES, CUSTOMERS & FINANCES 

2.1 Current Water Rates 
The following table shows JBWD’s current water rates which went into effect on January 1, 2022.  
These rates were adopted in 2018 and are the final year of a 5-year rate increase.   
 

 
 

JBWD’s water service charges include two components: 

 A fixed Basic Monthly Fee based on meter size purchased.  This charge is levied independent of 
water use and recovers a portion of the District’s fixed costs for providing service.  JBWD incurs a 
substantial amount of costs ensuring that water is available at all times to meet customer needs 
on demand.  The Basic Monthly Fee varies by meter size and capacity, with larger meters paying 
higher charges in proportion to the increased capacity and demand placed on the water system 
associated with each meter size.  Basic Monthly Fees currently recover roughly 40% of water rate 
revenues including charges from customers who previously connected to the District to secure 
future water service, but subsequently had their water meters locked or removed. 

 Volumetric Monthly Water Flow Charges billed based on metered water use.  Water Flow Charges 
for customers with 3/4-inch and 1-inch meters are billed according to a 4-tiered inclining rate 
structure with water purchased first in Tier 1 and then subsequently in higher tiers as water use 

BASIC MONTHLY FEE (FIXED CHARGE) Equivalent
Meter Size Capacity (gpm) Rate Per Day
  3/4" & 1" 30 $41.35 $1.36
  1-1/2" 100 137.83 4.53
  2" 160 220.53 7.25
  3" 300 413.50 13.59

MONTHLY WATER FLOW CHARGES (PER HCF)
For 3/4" & 1" Meters Equivalent Rate  
Consumption Per 100 gallons
  0 - 5 units $6.20 $0.83
  5.01 - 10 units 7.70 1.03
  10.01 - 20 units 9.20 1.23
  20.01 + units 10.70 1.43

For 1-1/2", 2" and 3" Meters
  Unit rate per all water use $7.70 $1.03

1 unit = 1 hcf = one hundred cubic feet = 748 gallons

Monthly Rate

Rate per hcf

Rate per hcf

Current Water Rates

21



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  5 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

increases.  Accounts with larger meters pay a uniform rate for each unit of metered water use.  
These volumetric charges currently recover approximately 60% of total water rate revenues.   
 
The District’s Water Flow Charges are billed in units of 100 cubic feet (hcf), which equates to 
approximately 748 gallons.  Hence the District’s current rates of $6.20 to $10.70 per hcf equate 
to $0.83 to $1.43 per 100 gallons, with the average rate of water equal to $1.03 per 100 gallons, 
or about a penny per gallon. 
 

Current monthly charges for a typical single family home: 

 A typical residential bill with monthly use of 6 hcf is currently $80.05 including the Basic Monthly 
Fee of $41.35 plus Monthly Flow Charges of $6.20 for the first 5 units of metered water use and 
$7.70 for the 6th unit.   

 The District has a significant number of customers with lower levels of water use.  Excluding bills 
with zero use, approximately one-third of residential bills have water use at or below 3 hcf per 
month which equates to a monthly bill at or below $59.95. 

2.2 Financial Overview 
JBWD is a financially self-supporting agency that relies primarily on monthly water service charges to 
fund the costs of operating, maintaining, and replacing aging water system infrastructure to support 
safe and reliable service.  Water rate revenues currently account for an estimated 70% of JBWD’s 
total annual revenues, with the remaining revenues coming from a combination of standby charges, 
property taxes, interest earnings, capacity and meter installation fees levied on new development, 
and other miscellaneous revenues.  As such, the District’s current and proposed water rates do not 
recover the full costs of service as rates are supplemented by other revenue sources. 
 
The District has historically provided strong financial management via gradual annual rate increases.  
JBWD last adopted a series of 5 years of rate increases in 2018 with the last increase effective 
January 1, 2022.  These increases were designed to take substantial steps in the right direction with 
the understanding that significant additional rate increases would be needed to ultimately support 
the District’s operating and capital improvement funding needs including providing adequate funding 
for replacement of aging infrastructure and anticipated Chromium 6 treatment.   

22



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  6 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

2.3 Financial Challenges / Key Drivers of Rate Increases 
While the rate increases implemented over the past 5 years have put the District on a stronger 
financial footing, JBWD is facing a number of financial challenges and increased funding needs in 
upcoming years to support safe and reliable service and address new regulatory requirements.  Key 
drivers of future rate increases are summarized as follows. 

2.3.1 Replacement of Aging Infrastructure and Undersized Water Pipelines 
JBWD owns and operates over 310 miles of pipelines, 5 wells, 17 water storage tanks, 11 pump 
stations, and a groundwater recharge facility.  Roughly 164 miles of JBWD’s water pipelines were 
installed 40 to 75 years ago and are approaching the end of their useful lives.  Many old pipelines are 
substandard and/or inadequately sized to meet current fire flow capacity requirements.   Some of the 
District's oldest existing developer-installed pipelines were second-hand when installed, further 
decreasing the remaining useful life.  Other aging facilities – including old pump stations, wells and 
water tanks – will also need to be rebuilt or refurbished in upcoming years.   
 

An engineering analysis of the water system developed by Dudek Engineers and subsequently 
updated by District staff identifies the need for $2.5 million per year (current $) of funding over the 
next 30 years to gradually replace aging infrastructure, address existing deficiencies, and improve 
reliability.  The District’s prior rate increases helped provide funding for these improvements, 
however additional rate increases are needed to support full funding of the District’s capital needs. 

2.3.2 New California Chromium 6 Regulations 
The District also faces the anticipated need to fund treatment facilities for Chromium 6, a naturally 
occurring chemical in the District’s groundwater that is a suspected carcinogen.  Concentration levels 
in the District’s groundwater are substantially below current federal and statewide standards.  
However, California’s State Water Resources Control Board is in the process of establishing new, 
substantially more-stringent regulations that would require the District to install and operate new 
Chromium 6 treatment facilities.   
 
Preliminary cost estimates for anticipated new Chromium 6 treatment facilities are in the $18 million 
range with annual operating expenses estimated at $750,000 per year. The District is searching for 
the most cost-effective treatment technology and is seeking grant funding and low-interest-rate loans 
from the California Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Financing Program to help 
minimize the costs of new treatment facilities.   
 
The District’s water rates adopted over the past 5 years were not designed to fund the costs of 
Chromium 6 treatment facilities or operations. 

23



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  7 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

2.3.3 Support Balanced Budgets & Keep Up with Cost Inflation 
The District faces ongoing operating cost inflation due to increases in a range of expenses including 
staffing, utilities, insurance, supplies, etc.  In addition to the need for rate increases to address other 
funding needs, annual rate adjustments are needed to support balanced budgets, and help keep 
revenues in line with the escalating costs of providing service. 
  

24



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  8 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

3 WATER CUSTOMERS & USE 

3.1 Water Customers 
JBWD provides water service to roughly 5,600 accounts including almost 4,900 active metered water 
accounts and about 760 accounts that previously connected to the District but subsequently had their 
water meters locked or removed.  The table on the following page shows a breakdown of accounts 
by class and meter size.  Almost 99% of the District’s active water service accounts are served by 
3/4-inch or 1-inch meters.  Accounts with larger meter sizes of 1-1/2-inches to 3-inches only account 
for a little over 1% of total active accounts.   
 
The table also shows the number of 3/4-inch meter equivalents that are served by the District.  Meter 
equivalents are assigned based on the capacity of each meter size in relation to that of the base 
3/4-inch meter.  Due to newer plumbing codes and fire sprinkler requirements, new residential 
connections typically require installation of 1-inch meters due to fire flow requirement even though 
they have an underlying water demand consistent with existing homes served by 3/4-inch meters.  
For fairness, the District treats accounts with 3/4-inch and 1-inch meters the same for purposes of 
billing. 
 
The District maintains service lines to 760 accounts that previously connected to the District to secure 
water service, but subsequently had their water meters locked or removed.  These “locked meter” 
accounts benefit from an immediate availability of water service but have suspended service and pay 
the District’s Basic Monthly Fees to help fund the District’s fixed costs of operations and maintain 
their status as District customers.  These customers have the ability to opt out from the District but 
would then need to pay new or additional capacity charges to re-establish service. 
 

25



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  9 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 
  

Number % of Capacity1,2 Meter Meter 
of Accounts Class (gpm) Ratio Equivalents 

Active Water Accounts
3/4" 4,372 89.4% 30 1.00 4,372
1" 464 9.5% 30 1.00 464
1-1/2" 27 0.6% 100 3.33 90
2" 21 0.4% 160 5.33 112
3" 5 0.1% 300 10.00 50_______ _______ _______
Subtotal 4,889 100.0% 5,088

Water Accounts with Locked Meters
3/4" 713 94.1% 30 1.00 713
3/4" Irrig 3 0.4% 30 1.00 3
1" 39 5.1% 30 1.00 39
1-1/2" 3 0.4% 100 3.33 10_______ _______ _______
Subtotal 758 100.0% 765

Fire Line Accounts
2" 2
4" 7
6" 6
8" 9_______
Total 24

Source:  Based average number of accounts from May & June 2022 utility billing data.

1 Based on American Water Works Association standard meter capacities.

2 Capacity of 1" meters  assigned same capacity as 3/4" meters due to updated plumbing codes
    requiring installation of 1" meters in single family homes for fire flow, while the underlying 
    demand remains the same as other single family homes served by a 3/4" meter.

Note:  Number of accounts can vary by billing period due to changes in account status & growth.

Water Accounts by Meter Size

26



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  10 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

3.2 Historical Water Use 
The following chart shows a history of District water use by fiscal year since 2011/12.  From 2011/12 
to 2013/14, the District’s annual water sales averaged over 580,000 hcf per year.  Water use 
subsequently declined through 2015/16 during California’s prior drought, before partially rebounding 
and then decreasing again through 2019/20.  In March 2020 of that year, Covid-19 was declared a 
pandemic.  Over the prior 2 fiscal years, water use averaged a little over 520,000 hcf, roughly 10% 
lower than the first few years shown on the chart. 
 

 
 

The tables on the following pages show historical water use by tier and by month. 
 

27



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  11 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 

2011/12
2012/13

2013/14
2014/15

2015/16
2016/17

2017/18
2018/19

2019/20
2020/21

2021/22

W
ater U

se by Tier for 3/4" &
 1" M

eters (hcf)
Tier 1

192,465
192,245

190,677
189,011

186,071
188,189

190,662
184,407

183,425
198,072

193,435
Tier 2

106,540
106,439

102,652
98,576

88,862
91,526

92,136
84,032

81,238
95,113

89,580
Tier 3

93,798
94,917

89,782
84,359

71,709
76,742

75,757
67,463

62,110
76,446

73,530
Tier 4

97,275
101,151

99,771
85,333

64,707
86,482

79,322
67,687

61,419
80,096

85,150
________

________
________

________
________

________
________

________
________

________
________

Subtotal
490,078

494,752
482,882

457,279
411,349

442,939
437,877

403,589
388,192

449,727
441,695

All O
ther U

se
98,639

88,724
96,261

93,150
71,731

85,275
79,555

77,261
75,678

75,143
79,414

________
________

________
________

________
________

________
________

________
________

________
Total (hcf)

588,717
583,476

579,143
550,429

483,080
528,214

517,432
480,850

463,870
524,870

521,109

Total (AF)
1,352

1,339
1,330

1,264
1,109

1,213
1,188

1,104
1,065

1,205
1,196

Annual Change
-0.9%

-0.7%
-5.0%

-12.2%
9.3%

-2.0%
-7.1%

-3.5%
13.2%

-0.7%

H
istorical W

ater U
se by Tier

28



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  12 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 
 

 
 

JU
L

AU
G

SEP
O

CT
N

O
V

D
EC

JAN
FEB

M
AR

APR
M

AY
JU

N
TO

TAL

2017/18
Tier 1

17,503
        

16,093
        

16,976
        

15,454
        

16,121
        

16,265
        

15,019
        

14,832
        

14,324
        

15,143
        

15,905
        

17,027
        

190,662
      

Tier 2
11,241

        
8,639

           
10,299

        
7,188

           
7,652

           
7,652

           
5,856

           
5,631

           
5,010

           
5,896

           
7,388

           
9,684

           
92,136

        
Tier 3

11,764
        

7,921
           

10,105
        

5,671
           

6,147
           

5,553
           

3,710
           

3,587
           

3,069
           

3,785
           

5,642
           

8,803
           

75,757
        

Tier 4
14,457

        
8,959

           
12,610

        
5,353

           
5,851

           
5,239

           
3,060

           
2,678

           
2,351

           
3,728

           
5,960

           
9,076

           
79,322

        
All O

ther
9,602

           
7,799

           
8,897

           
6,487

           
6,773

           
6,646

           
4,844

           
5,291

           
4,493

           
5,004

           
5,920

           
7,799

           
79,555

        
Total

64,567
        

49,411
        

58,887
        

40,153
        

42,544
        

41,355
        

32,489
        

32,019
        

29,247
        

33,556
        

40,815
        

52,389
        

517,432
      

Fire/Tem
p/N

o Chg
937

              
362

              
495

              
756

              
148

              
241

              
52

                 
95

                 
71

                 
166

              
210

              
338

              
3,871

           

2018/19
Tier 1

16,868
        

16,787
        

16,417
        

15,857
        

16,291
        

14,333
        

15,398
        

13,073
        

13,056
        

14,394
        

16,223
        

15,710
        

184,407
      

Tier 2
9,796

           
9,984

           
9,194

           
7,979

           
7,930

           
5,138

           
6,225

           
3,895

           
3,721

           
4,934

           
8,010

           
7,226

           
84,032

        
Tier 3

9,368
           

9,546
           

8,554
           

6,727
           

6,259
           

3,329
           

4,261
           

2,256
           

2,107
           

3,019
           

6,230
           

5,807
           

67,463
        

Tier 4
10,647

        
11,156

        
9,619

           
6,042

           
5,817

           
2,698

           
4,295

           
2,477

           
1,607

           
2,032

           
6,081

           
5,216

           
67,687

        
All O

ther
8,860

           
9,049

           
7,749

           
7,948

           
7,543

           
5,374

           
5,517

           
4,401

           
3,803

           
4,569

           
5,623

           
6,825

           
77,261

        
Total

55,539
        

56,522
        

51,533
        

44,553
        

43,840
        

30,872
        

35,696
        

26,102
        

24,294
        

28,948
        

42,167
        

40,784
        

480,850
      

Fire/Tem
p/N

o Chg
183

              
231

              
208

              
219

              
357

              
218

              
281

              
220

              
25

                 
148

              
264

              
573

              
2,927

           

2019/20
Tier 1

16,169
        

16,753
        

17,201
        

14,211
        

15,134
        

14,666
        

14,319
        

14,291
        

14,397
        

14,600
        

15,413
        

16,271
        

183,425
      

Tier 2
8,474

           
9,734

           
10,685

        
5,856

           
6,214

           
5,226

           
4,898

           
4,972

           
4,901

           
5,097

           
7,118

           
8,063

           
81,238

        
Tier 3

7,406
           

9,366
           

10,448
        

4,251
           

4,361
           

3,292
           

2,974
           

2,927
           

2,990
           

3,003
           

4,809
           

6,283
           

62,110
        

Tier 4
6,641

           
10,196

        
13,909

        
4,660

           
3,956

           
3,524

           
3,444

           
2,284

           
2,017

           
1,999

           
3,756

           
5,033

           
61,419

        
All O

ther
7,404

           
9,490

           
10,033

        
6,003

           
7,073

           
5,526

           
5,113

           
4,690

           
4,899

           
4,557

           
5,275

           
5,615

           
75,678

        
Total

46,094
        

55,539
        

62,276
        

34,981
        

36,738
        

32,234
        

30,748
        

29,164
        

29,204
        

29,256
        

36,371
        

41,265
        

463,870
      

Fire/Tem
p/N

o Chg
206

              
235

              
326

              
1,238

           
146

              
159

              
76

                 
165

              
87

                 
44

                 
55

                 
187

              
2,924

           

2020/21
Tier 1

17,515
        

18,004
        

17,098
        

17,456
        

16,736
        

15,712
        

15,992
        

14,855
        

14,433
        

16,406
        

16,797
        

17,068
        

198,072
      

Tier 2
10,236

        
11,367

        
9,473

           
9,936

           
8,241

           
6,189

           
6,558

           
5,076

           
4,569

           
7,061

           
7,951

           
8,456

           
95,113

        
Tier 3

9,213
           

11,206
        

8,387
           

8,995
           

6,544
           

4,084
           

4,159
           

3,101
           

2,795
           

4,877
           

6,068
           

7,017
           

76,446
        

Tier 4
9,856

           
12,921

        
9,748

           
9,990

           
6,233

           
4,772

           
4,004

           
3,189

           
2,201

           
4,375

           
5,974

           
6,833

           
80,096

        
All O

ther
7,319

           
8,134

           
7,004

           
7,714

           
6,363

           
5,304

           
5,235

           
4,808

           
4,213

           
5,691

           
6,469

           
6,889

           
75,143

        
Total

54,139
        

61,632
        

51,710
        

54,091
        

44,117
        

36,061
        

35,948
        

31,029
        

28,211
        

38,410
        

43,259
        

46,263
        

524,870
      

Fire/Tem
p/N

o Chg
286

              
114

              
133

              
112

              
311

              
110

              
465

              
271

              
108

              
355

              
627

              
714

              
3,606

           

2021/22
Tier 1

17,490
        

17,414
        

16,744
        

16,999
        

15,112
        

15,939
        

15,239
        

14,462
        

14,671
        

16,756
        

16,111
        

16,498
        

193,435
      

Tier 2
10,028

        
10,059

        
9,062

           
9,044

           
6,025

           
6,612

           
5,786

           
4,949

           
5,050

           
7,756

           
7,139

           
8,070

           
89,580

        
Tier 3

9,352
           

9,490
           

8,337
           

8,333
           

4,445
           

4,810
           

3,880
           

3,269
           

3,214
           

5,964
           

5,508
           

6,928
           

73,530
        

Tier 4
11,479

        
12,552

        
10,864

        
10,192

        
4,647

           
4,922

           
4,384

           
3,599

           
3,133

           
6,514

           
5,339

           
7,525

           
85,150

        
All O

ther
8,746

           
9,510

           
8,241

           
8,317

           
5,608

           
5,291

           
5,472

           
4,686

           
4,558

           
6,404

           
6,032

           
6,549

           
79,414

        
Total

57,095
        

59,025
        

53,248
        

52,885
        

35,837
        

37,574
        

34,751
        

30,955
        

30,626
        

43,394
        

40,129
        

45,570
        

521,109
      

Fire/Tem
p/N

o Chg
645

              
1,130

           
389

              
1,252

           
499

              
302

              
99

                 
81

                 
81

                 
65

                 
60

                 
232

              
4,835

           

5-Year Average
Tier 1

17,109
        

17,010
        

16,887
        

15,995
        

15,879
        

15,383
        

15,193
        

14,303
        

14,176
        

15,460
        

16,090
        

16,515
        

190,000
      

Tier 2
9,955

           
9,957

           
9,743

           
8,001

           
7,212

           
6,163

           
5,865

           
4,905

           
4,650

           
6,149

           
7,521

           
8,300

           
88,420

        
Tier 3

9,421
           

9,506
           

9,166
           

6,795
           

5,551
           

4,214
           

3,797
           

3,028
           

2,835
           

4,130
           

5,651
           

6,968
           

71,061
        

Tier 4
10,616

        
11,157

        
11,350

        
7,247

           
5,301

           
4,231

           
3,837

           
2,845

           
2,262

           
3,730

           
5,422

           
6,737

           
74,735

        
All O

ther
8,386

           
8,796

           
8,385

           
7,294

           
6,672

           
5,628

           
5,236

           
4,775

           
4,393

           
5,245

           
5,864

           
6,735

           
77,410

        
Total

55,487
        

56,426
        

55,531
        

45,333
        

40,615
        

35,619
        

33,928
        

29,856
        

28,316
        

34,713
        

40,548
        

45,254
        

501,626
      

Fire/Tem
p/N

o Chg
645

              
1,130

           
389

              
1,252

           
499

              
302

              
99

                 
81

                 
81

                 
65

                 
60

                 
232

              
4,835

           

H
istorical W

ater U
se by M

onth

29



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  13 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

3.3 Water Use per Tier for 3/4” & 1” Meters 
The following table and charts show a breakdown of the number of bills ending in each tier in the 
prior fiscal year 2021/22 along with water use per tier for customer with 3/4-inch and 1-inch 
accounts who are billed tiered water rates. 
 

 
 

 

Monthly Bills Ending Water Use
Use in Tier % in Tier

Tier 1 0 - 5 hcf 54.0% 43.8%

Tier 2 5.01 - 10 hcf 23.9% 20.3%

Tier 3 10.01 - 20 hcf 14.4% 16.6%

Tier 4 20.01 + hcf 7.7% 19.3%

Bills & Use in Tier 2021/22

30



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  14 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 

4 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS & RATE METHODOLOGY 

4.1 Constitutional Rate Requirements 
The California Constitution includes two key articles that directly govern or impact JBWD’s water 
rates: Article 10 and Article 13D.  The water rates developed in this study were designed to comply 
with both of these constitutional mandates as well as various provisions of the California Water Code 
and Government Code that support and add further guidance for implementing these constitutional 
requirements.  In accordance with the constitutional provisions, the proposed rates are designed to 
a) recover the District’s cost of providing service, b) recover revenues in proportion to the cost for 
serving each customer, and c) promote conservation and discourage waste. 

4.1.1 Article 10, Section 2 
Article 10, Section 2 of the California Constitution was established by voter-approval in 1976 and 
requires public agencies to maximize the beneficial use of water, prevent waste, and encourage 
conservation.  Section 2 states that: 
 

It is hereby declared that because of the conditions prevailing in this State the general welfare 
requires that the water resources of the State be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of 
which they are capable, and that the waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of 
use of water be prevented, and that the conservation of such waters is to be exercised with 
a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof in the interest of the people and for the 
public welfare.  

4.1.2 Article 13D, Section 6 
Proposition 218 was adopted by California voters in 1996 and added Articles 13C and 13D to the 
California Constitution.  Article 13D, Section 6 governs property-related charges, which the California 
Supreme Court subsequently ruled includes ongoing utility service charges such as water, sewer, and 
garbage rates.  Article 13D, Section 6 establishes a) procedural requirements for imposing or 
increasing property-related charges, and b) substantive requirements for those charges.  Article 13D 
also requires voter approval for new or increased property-related charges but exempts from this 
voting requirement rates for water, sewer, and garbage service.  
 
  

31



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  15 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

The substantive requirements of Article 13D, Section 6 require JBWD’s water rates to meet the 
following conditions:  

1) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed the funds required to provide the 
property related service. 

2) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not be used for any purpose other than that for 
which the fee or charge was imposed. 

3) The amount of a fee or charge imposed upon any parcel or person as an incident of property 
ownership shall not exceed the proportional cost of the service attributable to the parcel. 

4) No fee or charge may be imposed for a service unless that service is actually used by, or 
immediately available to, the owner of the property in question.   

5) No fee or charge may be imposed for general governmental services, such as police or fire 
services, where the service is available to the public at large in substantially the same manner 
as it is to property owners. 

  
A number of court decisions have added some legal clarification regarding these substantive rate 
requirements.  The water rates derived in this report are based on a cost-of-service methodology that 
is designed to fairly apportion costs to all customers and comply with all legal requirements.   

4.2 Rate-Setting Methodology 
The rates developed in this report use a cost-of-service methodology to establish an equitable system 
of fixed and variable service charges designed to equitably recover costs of providing service while 
aligning with District policy objectives to the extent possible.  The general methodology used in this 
study is summarized on the diagram on the following page.   
 

  

32



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  16 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 

Revenue Requirements

Determine future funding 
requirements from rates

Cost Allocation

Equitably apportion costs 
to rate components

Rate Design
Develop rates that 

recover revenues in 
proportion to the cost 

of providing service

Identify near-term & 
long-term operating and 

capital funding needs

Evaluate financing 
alternatives for capital 

improvements

Establish fund reserve 
targets for financial 

planning

Evaluate financial 
scenarios and associated 

rate increases

Determine future annual 
revenue requirements

Allocate costs to fixed 
and variable rates
(based on financial 

projections)

Project total accounts 
by meter size

Calculate a common 
underlying fixed charge 
per meter equivalent

Project volume of water 
sales per rate class 

based on recent 
historal demand

Allocate costs and 
revenue offsets to 

volumetric rate tiers

Identify policy objectives 
for updated water rates

Review existing rate 
structure and identify 

potential modifications

Apply unit costs of 
service to characteristics 
of each customer class

Develop fixed charges 
that recover costs in 

proportion to meter size 
& capacity

Develop volumetric 
rates that recover costs 

apportioned to each tier

Cost of Service Rate-Setting Methodology 

33



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  17 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

5 FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 

5.1 Financial Projections Overview 
Bartle Wells Associates developed long-term cash flow projections to determine annual revenue 
requirements and evaluate water rate increases.  During the rate study process, BWA worked with 
the District to evaluate a number of financial scenarios.  Key scenarios evaluated include: 

 Best Management Practice Scenario designed to fully fund JBWD’s projected operating and 
capital funding needs and ultimately support balanced budgets via rate increases phased in 
over the next 5 years;  

 Reduced Rate Scenario that phases in slightly lower rate increases over the next 5 years to 
support projected funding needs while drawing down roughly $2 million of fund reserves and 
deferring some rate increases to future years 

 Limit Rate Increases to 9% Per Year and only partially increase capital funding levels while 
deferring more rate increases to future years. 

 
Based on input received from the District and the Citizens Advisory Council, the rates developed in 
this report are based on the Best Management Practice Scenario, but are being proposed as maximum 
rates.  The District anticipates reevaluating rates and finances in future years with the goal of only 
implementing rate increases as needed up to the maximum levels proposed.     

5.2 Key Assumptions 
The financial projections incorporate the latest information available as well as a number of 
reasonable and slightly conservative assumptions.  Key assumptions are listed below: 

 Operating expenses are based on the current fiscal year budget, which includes approximately 
$7.1 million of operating and maintenance expenses 

 Operating cost inflation is projected at 6% in the next fiscal year 2023/24 and subsequently at 
4% per year thereafter 

 Growth:  The projections include 50 new single family homes or equivalents in the current fiscal 
year and 25 new equivalent connections per year thereafter 

 Water Demand Elasticity:  Water use projections assume each 10% increase in water usage 
charges results in a 1% decrease in water use 

 Additional Staffing (deferred & reduced):  The projections include an additional $44,000 for 
additional staffing needs starting the current fiscal escalating to $190,000 per year starting 
2025/26.  These levels of additional funding have been partially deferred and reduced from the 
District’s initial need-based estimates. 

34



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  18 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 Assumes $18 million Chromium 6 Project funded by a $10 million grant supplemented by an 
$8 million low-rate State Revolving Fund Loan with a 30-year repayment term and a 2.75% 
annual interest rate resulting in $400,000 in new annual debt service starting 2025/26. 

 Chromium 6 operating expenses are estimated a $750,000 per year starting in approximately 
3 years in 2025/26 when the new treatment facilities are projected to begin operating. 

 Imported water purchases for groundwater recharge from Mojave Water Agency are projected 
at 1,000 acre feet per year; roughly 85% of annual District water demand. 

 Equipment/Technology replacement is projected to increase from prior budgeted levels of 
$170,000 per year to $375,000 per year based on District analysis of annual depreciation of 
vehicles and equipment accounting for new equipment needed for the CIRP program. 

 Annual funding for Studies/Reports, many of which are state-mandated, is projected to 
increase from prior budgeted levels of $50,000 per year to $200,000 per year based on a 
conservative estimate of District needs. 

 Meter Replacement Program funding, which was previously projected at $500,000 per year, is 
reduced to $185,000 per year for the next 7 years and then decreases to $50,000 per year 
thereafter. 

 Funding for a new administrative office building has been excluded from the financial 
projections. 

 Capital improvement funding is projected at $2.5 million per year with a conservative 3.5% 
annual cost escalation in future years. 

5.3 Fund Reserves & Reserve Target 
For financial planning purposes, the financial projections assume a Minimum Fund Reserve Target 
equal to 50% of annual operating and maintenance expenses plus $2 million for emergency capital 
reserves.  Maintaining a prudent minimal level of fund reserves is an important component of 
financial management.  Fund reserves provides a financial cushion for dealing with unanticipated 
expenses, revenue shortfalls, and non-catastrophic emergency capital repairs.  The fund reserve 
targets will escalate over time as JBWD’s expenses gradually increase in future years.  The projections 
indicate that the District will exceed the Minimum Fund Reserve Target in future years, which may 
provide the District with some flexibility for additional capital funding if needed, such as for higher-
than-expected Chromium 6 project costs.  The District may consider increasing its targeted levels of 
emergency capital reserves through a future Reserve Policy review. 

5.4 Financial Projections 
The following pages show 10-year financial projections under the proposed Best Management 
Practice Scenario.  

35



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  19 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 

                       JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Best Management Practice Scenario Years 1 - 5

1 2 3 4 5
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

1 Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
2 Overall Rate Increase Target 16% 14% 12% 10% 8%
3   Fixed Rate Increase % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
4   Usage Rate Increase % 23.2% 19.0% 15.4% 12.2% 9.3%
5 Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 50 25 25 25 25
6 Growth % 1.0% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
7 Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
8 Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -2.3% -1.9% -1.5% -1.2% -0.9%
9 Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 916 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
10 MWA Rate per AF (+3%/yea r) $623 $645 $664 $684 $705
11 Interest Earnings Rate 1.0% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
12 Annual Cost Escalator 6.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

13 Beginning Fund Reserves $12,846,000 $13,068,000 $12,971,000 $13,365,000 $12,913,000

14 REVENUES
15 Basic Monthly Fees 2,560,000 2,731,000 2,882,000 3,041,000 3,209,000
16 Water Usage Charges 4,202,000 4,986,000 5,675,000 6,325,000 6,907,000
17 Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 380,000 399,000 419,000 440,000 462,000
18 Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
20 Property Taxes (+2%/year) 672,000 685,000 699,000 713,000 727,000
21 Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 200,000 204,000 208,000 212,000 216,000
22 Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 486,000 250,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
23 Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 128,000 196,000 195,000 200,000 194,000
24 HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 281,000 298,000 310,000 322,000 336,000
25 Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
26 Total Revenues 10,134,000 10,974,000 11,871,000 12,736,000 13,534,000

27 SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project 10,000,000 >>>>
28 SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project 8,000,000 >>>>

30 EXPENSES
31 Operating & Maintenance
32 Production 1,360,000 1,442,000 1,500,000 1,560,000 1,622,000
33 Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 571,000 645,000 664,000 684,000 705,000
34 Distribution 1,212,000 1,285,000 1,336,000 1,389,000 1,445,000
35 Customer Service 778,000 825,000 858,000 892,000 928,000
36 Administration   1,255,000 1,330,000 1,383,000 1,438,000 1,496,000
37 Finance 931,000 987,000 1,026,000 1,067,000 1,110,000
38 Human Resources 267,000 283,000 294,000 306,000 318,000
39 HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 230,000 244,000 254,000 264,000 275,000
40 Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 87,000 92,000 96,000 100,000 104,000
41 Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 44,000 47,000 49,000 190,000 198,000
42 CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 442,000 469,000 488,000 508,000 528,000
43 Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (100,000) (106,000) (110,000) (114,000) (119,000)
44 Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 0 0 0 750,000 780,00045 _________ _________ _________ _________ _________
46   Subtotal 7,077,000 7,543,000 7,838,000 9,034,000 9,390,000

47 Debt Service
48 2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
49 Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) - - - 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
50   Subtotal 268,000 268,000 268,000 668,000 668,000

51 Capital/Non-Operating
52 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 1,785,000 2,500,000 2,588,000 2,679,000 2,773,000
53 Equipment/Technology 300,000 375,000 390,000 406,000 422,000
54 Studies/Reports 300,000 200,000 208,000 216,000 225,000
55 Chromium 6 Project (gra nt & loan funded) 0 18,000,000 >>>> 0 0
56 Meter Replacement Program 182,000 185,000 185,000 185,000 185,000
57 Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
59   Subtotal 2,567,000 21,260,000 3,371,000 3,486,000 3,605,000

60 Total Expenses 9,912,000 29,071,000 11,477,000 13,188,000 13,663,000

61 Revenues Less Expenses 222,000 (97,000) 394,000 (452,000) (129,000)

62 Ending Fund Reserves 13,068,000 12,971,000 13,365,000 12,913,000 12,784,000

63 Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 5,538,500 5,771,500 5,919,000 6,517,000 6,695,000
64 Debt Service Coverage 11.41                              12.80                              15.05                              5.54                                6.20                                
65 Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves 222,000                         125,000                         519,000                         67,000                            (62,000)                          

36



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  20 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 

                       JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Best Management Practice Scenario Years 6 - 10

6 7 8 9 10
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2030/31

Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
Overall Rate Increase Target 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
  Fixed Rate Increase % 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
  Usage Rate Increase % 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 25 25 25 25 25
Growth % 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -0.4% -0.4% -0.4% -0.4% -0.4%
Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
MWA Rate per AF (+3%/year) $726 $748 $770 $793 $817
Interest Earnings Rate 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Annual Cost Escalator 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Beginning Fund Reserves $12,784,000 $12,806,000 $12,786,000 $12,856,000 $12,878,000

REVENUES
Basic Monthly Fees 3,369,000 3,521,000 3,680,000 3,846,000 4,019,000
Water Usage Charges 7,341,000 7,604,000 7,877,000 8,159,000 8,452,000
Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 480,000 499,000 519,000 540,000 562,000
Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Property Taxes (+2%/year) 742,000 757,000 772,000 787,000 803,000
Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 220,000 224,000 228,000 233,000 238,000
Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 192,000 192,000 192,000 193,000 193,000
HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 349,000 362,000 377,000 392,000 407,000
Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Total Revenues 14,176,000 14,642,000 15,128,000 15,633,000 16,157,000

SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project
SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project

EXPENSES
Operating & Maintenance
Production 1,687,000 1,754,000 1,824,000 1,897,000 1,973,000
Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 726,000 748,000 770,000 793,000 817,000
Distribution 1,503,000 1,563,000 1,626,000 1,691,000 1,759,000
Customer Service 965,000 1,004,000 1,044,000 1,086,000 1,129,000
Administration   1,556,000 1,618,000 1,683,000 1,750,000 1,820,000
Finance 1,154,000 1,200,000 1,248,000 1,298,000 1,350,000
Human Resources 331,000 344,000 358,000 372,000 387,000
HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 286,000 297,000 309,000 321,000 334,000
Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 108,000 112,000 116,000 121,000 126,000
Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 206,000 214,000 223,000 232,000 241,000
CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 549,000 571,000 594,000 618,000 643,000
Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (124,000) (129,000) (134,000) (139,000) (145,000)
Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 811,000 843,000 877,000 912,000 948,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 9,758,000 10,139,000 10,538,000 10,952,000 11,382,000

Debt Service
2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000

Capital/Non-Operating
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2,870,000 2,970,000 3,074,000 3,182,000 3,293,000
Equipment/Technology 439,000 457,000 475,000 494,000 514,000
Studies/Reports 234,000 243,000 253,000 263,000 274,000
Chromium 6 Project (grant & loan funded) 0 0 0 0 0
Meter Replacement Program 185,000 185,000 50,000 52,000 54,000
Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 3,728,000 3,855,000 3,852,000 3,991,000 4,135,000

Total Expenses 14,154,000 14,662,000 15,058,000 15,611,000 16,185,000

Revenues Less Expenses 22,000 (20,000) 70,000 22,000 (28,000)

Ending Fund Reserves 12,806,000 12,786,000 12,856,000 12,878,000 12,850,000

Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 6,879,000 7,069,500 7,269,000 7,476,000 7,691,000
Debt Service Coverage 6.61                                6.74                                6.87                                7.01                                7.15                                
Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves (40,000)                          (60,000)                          10,000                            32,000                            4,000                              

37



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  21 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

The following chart shows a 10-year breakdown of projected expenses and future revenues with the 
projected rate increases.  The projected rate increases are designed to fully fund JBWD’s projected 
operating and capital funding needs and ultimately support balanced budgets via rate increases 
phased in over the next 5 years 
 

 
  

38



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  22 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

5.5 Projected Rate Increases 
The following table shows projected overall water rate increases along with a breakdown of projected 
fixed and usage rate increases.  The projected rates are designed to limit increases to the District’s 
fixed Basic Monthly Fees to 5% per year with the remaining required rate increases generated from 
increases to volumetric Water Flow Charges.   
 
The proposed rate increases are phased in over 5 years in order to keep revenues in line with funding 
needs and help minimize the annual impact on ratepayers.  Actual billing impacts will vary depending 
on each customer’s meter size and water consumption, as the proposed rates also include some 
adjustments to the District’s rate structure.  While rate increases in early years are higher in 
percentage terms compared to the rate increases in later years, due to compounding, the actual dollar 
impacts on customer bills are more constant from year to year. 
 

 
 
 

Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Overall Rate Increases 16% 14% 12% 10% 8%

Fixed Rate Increases 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Usage Rate Increases 23.2% 19.0% 15.4% 12.2% 9.3%

Note: Due to rate structure adjustments, impacts will vary based on meter size & water use.

Projected Water Rate Increases

39



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  23 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

6 RATE DERIVATION 

6.1 Rate Structure Modifications 
The District’s current water rate structure reflects input received in prior years from the District’s 
Citizens Advisory Council and Board of Directors.   

 Over the years, there have been less increases to fixed Basic Monthly Fees coupled with higher 
increases to volumetric Water Flow Charges.  These rate structure adjustments were designed 
to help reduce the billing impacts on low users and gradually increase conservation incentive. 

 Over the years, the differences between the rates levied in each tier (for customers with 
smaller meter sizes) have gradually widened.  Prior to 2007, the rates levied in each successive 
tier were only 10 cents higher than the prior tier, but now escalate by $1.50 per tier.   

 Based on input from a prior Citizens Advisory Council, the number of tiers was increased from 
3 to 4 tiers for customers with 3/4-inch and 1-inch meters, and a uniform rate was established 
for customers with larger meters. 

 

Based on evaluation of current water rates and additional input received during the rate study 
process, the proposed rates developed in this report incorporate some additional modest 
adjustments to JBWD’s water rate structure.  These modifications are designed to a) provide a 
reasonable and appropriate balance of fixed vs. usage-based revenue recovery, b) gradually increase 
conservation incentive while helping to minimize the financial impact on customers with low to 
moderate water use, c) fairly apportion costs of service to all JBWD customers in accordance with the 
substantive requirements of Article 13D, Section 6 of the California Constitution, and d) reflect the 
policy preferences of the District and the Citizens Advisory Council.  Rate structure modifications are 
summarized as follows. 

6.1.1 Less Increase to Fixed Meter Charges 
The proposed rates include lower 5% annual increases to fixed Basic Monthly Fees coupled with larger 
increases to volumetric Water Flow Charges.  While this will result in some increases to fixed charges, 
it will also help keep fixed charges more affordable and reduce the overall billing impacts on 
customers with lower levels of water use. 

6.1.2 More Increases to Water Usage Charges 

With fixed rate increases limited to 5% per year, more increases are required from water usage 
charges.  Increases to water usage rates and tiers are phased in over 5 years.   

40



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  24 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

6.1.3 Widening the Differences in Rates Between Tiers 
The District’s Water Flow Charges for accounts with 3/4-inch and 1-inch meters (mostly residential 
customers) are billed according a 4-tiered inclining rate structure with water first purchased in Tier 1 
and subsequently in higher tiers as water use increases.  Based on an updated cost of service analysis 
deriving the proposed rates, the rate differential between each tier gradually increases over 5 years 
from a current difference of $1.50 per hcf between successive tiers to a difference of $2.00 per hcf 
between successive tiers.  This results in more increases to higher tiers and less increases to lower 
rate tiers.  Note that all customers first use water in the lowest tier and hence also receive benefit 
due to lower rates for lower levels of water use.  High use customers will face slightly higher rate 
increases for higher level of water use, but  also benefit from paying the same fixed monthly charges 
as lower-use customers, even though they put more demand on the water system.  

6.2 Fixed & Variable Cost Recovery 
Rates developed in this report are based on an allocation of costs to fixed and variable rate recovery 
as shown on the following table.  Costs are allocated based on projected expenses in 2026/27, the 
final year of the proposed rates.  Revenues derived from sources other than water rates are applied 
toward reducing cost recovery from rates.  Based on the cost allocations, water rates are designed to 
recover 36% of rate revenues from JBWD’s fixed Basic Monthly Fees and 64% of rate revenues from 
volumetric Water Flow Charges, well in line with industry norms.  
 

41



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  25 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 
 

  

Year 5
2026/27 Fixed Variable Fixed Variable

EXPENSES
Operating & Maintenance
Production 1,622,000 0% 100% 0 1,622,000
Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 705,000 0% 100% 0 705,000
Distribution 1,445,000 0% 100% 0 1,445,000
Customer Service (10% for Conservation Prog) 928,000 90% 10% 835,200 92,800
Administration 1,496,000 75% 25% 1,122,000 374,000
Finance 1,110,000 75% 25% 832,500 277,500
Human Resources 318,000 75% 25% 238,500 79,500
HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 275,000 100% 0% 275,000 0
Standby Admin/Dvlmnt & Engin/Other 104,000 50% 50% 52,000 52,000
Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 198,000 75% 25% 148,500 49,500
CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 528,000 25% 75% 132,000 396,000
Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (119,000) 25% 75% (29,750) (89,250)
Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 780,000 0% 100% 0 780,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 9,390,000 38% 62% 3,605,950 5,784,050

Debt Service
2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 25% 75% 67,000 201,000
Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) 400,000 0% 100% 0 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 668,000 50% 50% 67,000 601,000

Non-Operating/Discretionary
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2,773,000 25% 75% 693,250 2,079,750
Equipment/Technology 422,000 50% 50% 211,000 211,000
Studies/Reports 225,000 50% 50% 112,500 112,500
Meter Replacement Program 185,000 100% 0% 185,000 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 3,605,000 33% 67% 1,201,750 2,403,250

Total Expenses 13,663,000 35.7% 64.3% 4,874,700 8,788,300

NET FUNDING REQUIRED FROM WATER RATES
Total Expenses 13,663,000 35.7% 64.3% 4,874,700 8,788,300
Less Property Tax Revenues (727,000) 35.7% 64.3% (259,380) (467,620)
Less Other Non-Rate Revenues (2,229,000) 35.7% 64.3% (795,265) (1,433,735)_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Net Funding Requirement from Water Rates 11,434,000 35.7% 64.3% 4,079,435 7,354,565
  Rounded Target 36.0% 64.0%

Excludes capital improvement projects funded by grants and debt, but includes associated debt service.

Cost Recovery % Cost Recovery $
Fixed vs. Variable Rate Recovery

42



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  26 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

Depending on perspective, many costs can reasonably be allocated to either fixed rate revenue 
recovery, to usage-based rate recovery, or to some combination of the two.  Many of the District’s 
costs are fixed costs that do not vary with changes in water consumption, such as salaries, benefits, 
and costs for building and maintaining infrastructure. However, even though these are fixed 
expenses, revenue recovery for these costs can equitably be funded from variable, usage-based rates.  
For example, the fixed costs related to water production can reasonably be recovered from usage-
based charges as these costs are incurred to provide water supply to meet customer demand, hence 
it is reasonable to recover these costs based on water use.   
 

While there is no single correct approach to revenue recovery, BWA believes that costs should be 
allocated within a reasonable range that reflects both a) underlying cost causation, to the extent such 
causation can reasonably be determined or estimated, and b) policy preferences in cases where a 
range of reasonable approaches can be justified.  As shown on the table:  

 Costs related to water production, groundwater recharge, and distribution are allocated 
for recovery from volumetric rates.  Under this approach, the costs related to water supply 
and distribution are recovered based on each customer’s metered water consumption. 

 Costs for administration and other support functions such as finance, engineering, legal, 
and to a larger degree customer service, are allocated primarily to cost recovery from fixed 
charges with a smaller share of revenue recovery from usage-based charges. 

 Capital improvement related expenses are allocated for 25% cost recovery from fixed 
charges (which are based on the capacity needs for serving each meter size) and 75% cost 
recovery from volumetric rates.  This reflects a balance in revenue recovery recognizing 
that a) infrastructure is needed to meet the demands of each meter size regardless of 
actual use, and also b) customers who use more water place a higher demand on the 
system and should pay based on their proportional share of water use.   

 Projected operating and debt service expenses related to Chromium 6 treatment are 
allocated for 100% cost recovery from volumetric rates to be recovered based on metered 
water consumption. 

 Costs for the District’s meter replacement program are allocated for 100% cost recovery 
from fixed charges. 

 Costs for Equipment/Technology and Studies/Reports are allocated to be recovered 50% 
from fixed charges and 50% from volumetric charges. 

 Revenues received from sources other than rates (property taxes, standby charges, 
interest earnings, etc.) are used to offset the revenue requirements from fixed and 
volumetric rates based on the same overall share of expenses allocated for cost recovery 
from fixed and volumetric rates. 

43



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  27 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

6.3 Fixed Rate Derivation 
The proposed fixed meter charges are designed to recover costs from each meter in proportion to 
meter capacity and the associated demand placed on the water system by each meter size.  The table 
below derives fixed meter charges effective January 1, 2027, the final year of rate increases projected 
for the next 5 years.  Revenue requirements from fixed charges are calculated by multiplying a) the 
annualized revenue requirement from water rates effective Jan-1, 2027 by b) 36%, the percentage of 
costs allocated for fixed rate revenue recovery.  This fixed rate funding target is then divided by the 
total number of projected meter equivalents that JBWD will serve in 2026/27 to determine a fixed 
charge per meter equivalent.  A meter equivalent represents the capacity of a base 3/4-inch or 1-inch 
meter.  Fixed rates for larger meters are then calculated in proportion to the capacity of each meter 
size in relation to that of the base meter size.  For example, a 3-inch meter has 10 times the capacity 
of the base meter size and would pay a fixed charge that is also 10 times that of the base meter size. 

 

 

Water Rate Revenue Recovery
Annualized Revenues w/ Rate Increases Effective Jan-1, 2027 $10,549,000

Fixed Rate Recovery
Cost Recovery Allocation % 36%
Cost Recovery Allocation $ $3,797,640

Meter Equivalents
Active Water Accounts 5,088
Locked Meter Accounts 765
Projected Growth Through 2026/27 150
Total 6,003

Rate per Meter Equivalent
Annual $632.62
Monthly 52.72
Rounded 52.70

Projected Fixed Monthly Meter Charges Effective Jan-1, 2027

Meter Size Capacity (gpm)
3/4" & 1" 30 $52.70

1-1/2" 100 175.67
2" 160 281.07
3" 300 527.00

Fixed Rate Derivation

44



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  28 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

6.4 Projected Water Use 
The following table shows a 5-year projection of water use by rate class.  Projected water use is based 
on the prior 5-year average with future use adjusted to account for a) overall elasticity of water 
purchases in response to rate increases, with each 10% increase to Water Flow Charges projected to 
result in a corresponding 1% reduction in water sales, and b) higher levels of water reduction in the 
higher rate tiers, and less reduction in lower rate tiers.  If a customer cuts back water use by 10%, 
from 20 hcf to 18 hcf, they have reduced their Tier 3 consumption by 2 hcf, but are still using the full 
amount of water in the first two tiers.  Hence, agencies experiencing a decline in water use typically 
face less reductions in the lowest rate tier coupled with higher percentage reductions in higher tiers.  
A small amount of Increased water use from growth is projected to be offset by additional 
conservation.  Based on the projections, total water consumption is projected to decrease by 7% over 
the next 5 years in response to the projected increases to the District’s Water Flow Charges. 
 

5-Yr Avg
FY18 - FY22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Change in Use After Rate Increase -2.3% -1.9% -1.5% -1.2% -0.9%

Jul-Dec Jul-Feb Jul-Dec Jul-Dec Jul-Dec Jul-Dec
Billed Use by Tier for 3/4" & 1" Meters (hcf)

Tier 1 98,300           127,800 97,800 97,400 97,100 96,900
Tier 2 51,000           61,800 49,200 47,800 46,700 45,800
Tier 3 44,700           51,500 42,800 41,300 40,200 39,300
Tier 4 49,900           56,600 47,400 45,400 43,900 42,700

All Other Use (hcf) 45,200           55,200 44,700 44,300 44,000 43,700

Jan-Jun Mar-Jun Jan-Jun Jan-Jun Jan-Jun Jan-Jun
Billed Use by Tier for 3/4" & 1" Meters (hcf)

Tier 1 91,700           62,000 90,900 90,600 90,400 90,200
Tier 2 37,400           25,700 35,100 34,300 33,700 33,200
Tier 3 26,400           18,800 24,400 23,700 23,200 22,800
Tier 4 24,800           17,200 22,600 21,800 21,200 20,800

All Other Use (hcf) 32,200           22,000 31,500 31,300 31,100 31,000

Total Annual Use
Billed Use by Tier for 3/4" & 1" Meters (hcf)

Tier 1 190,000         189,800        188,700        188,000        187,500        187,100        
Tier 2 88,400           87,500          84,300          82,100          80,400          79,000          
Tier 3 71,100           70,300          67,200          65,000          63,400          62,100          
Tier 4 74,700           73,800          70,000          67,200          65,100          63,500          

All Other Use (hcf) 77,400           77,200          76,200          75,600          75,100          74,700          __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Annual Total 501,600 498,600 486,400 477,900 471,500 466,400

Annual Change -0.6% -2.4% -1.7% -1.3% -1.1%
Cumulative Change -0.6% -3.0% -4.7% -6.0% -7.0%

Projected Water Use
Projected Water Use

45



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  29 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

6.5 Water Flow Charge Derivation 
The District’s Water Flow Charges are designed to recover 64% of total rate revenues.  For purposes 
of deriving rates for each of the District’s rate tiers, costs allocated for recovery from volumetric rates 
are further broken down and allocated based on a Base vs. Extra Capacity approach.   

 Base costs are defined as expenses associated with providing system capacity and water 
service under base, wet weather months with the lowest levels of water use.  These costs 
benefit all water use on a pro-rata basis.  For example, the costs of water production are 
recovered based on each customer’s proportionate share of total water consumption.  
Hence, Base Costs are recovered equally from each unit of water sold. 

 Extra Capacity costs are defined as expenses related to providing system capacity and 
water service to meet peak demands in excess of base use.  Water system facilities must 
generally be oversized to meet peak-day and peak-hour demands, which require 
additional system capacity similar to the need for additional lanes on a highway to meet 
peak rush hour demands even though fewer lanes would otherwise be adequate for non-
rush hour traffic.  Additionally, there are some costs that should be recovered more from 
higher levels of use, such as costs related to the District’s conservation program. 

 

The table on the following page shows a breakdown of costs allocated for fixed and variable rate 
recovery.  Costs slated for variable rate recovery are subsequently allocated to Base and Extra 
Capacity.  Most of these costs are assigned as Base costs.  Costs allocated to Extra Capacity include: 

 Approximately 10% of customer service expenses are related to the District’s 
conservation program and are assigned for variable rate recovery.  100% of these costs 
are subsequently allocated to Extra Capacity in recognition that conservation program 
costs are incurred largely due to the need to reduce water consumption of customers 
with higher levels of water use. 

 Of the 75% of capital improvement costs allocated for variable rate recovery, 20% of these 
costs are allocated to Extra Capacity, resulting in 15% of total capital improvement costs 
allocated to Extra Capacity needed to meet peak demands.  15% is a conservative 
estimate of the share of water system costs associated with meeting peak demands in 
excess of base use. 

 Similarly, of the 75% of net Capital Improvement Replacement Program (CIRP) Program 
expenses allocated for variable rate recovery, 20% of these costs are allocated to Extra 
Capacity, resulting in 15% of CIRP capital improvement costs allocated to Extra Capacity. 

 A conservatively estimated 10% of the share of debt service allocated for variable rate 
recovery is further allocated to Extra Capacity, as debt service is essentially an amortized 
cost for infrastructure.

46



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  30 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

  

 
 

Projected 
Fixed

Usage
Expenses

Rate
Rate

Base
Extra

Base
Extra

2026/27
Recovery

Recovery
%

Capacity %
$

Capacity $

REVEN
U

E REQ
U

IREM
EN

T FRO
M

 W
ATER U

SA
G

E CH
A

RG
ES

Expenses Fully Allocated for Base U
sage Rate Revenue Recovery

Production
1,622,000

0
1,622,000

100%
0%

1,622,000
0

Recharge W
ater Purchases from

 M
W

A 
705,000

0
705,000

100%
0%

705,000
0

Distribution
1,445,000

0
1,445,000

100%
0%

1,445,000
0

Adm
inistration

1,496,000
1,122,000

374,000
100%

0%
374,000

0
Finance

1,110,000
832,500

277,500
100%

0%
277,500

0
Hum

an Resources
318,000

238,500
79,500

100%
0%

79,500
0

HDM
C W

W
TP O

perations (reim
burseable)

275,000
275,000

0
100%

0%
0

0
Standby Adm

in/Dvlm
nt &

 Engin/O
ther

104,000
52,000

52,000
100%

0%
52,000

0
Add'l Staffing N

eeds (deferred &
 reduced)

198,000
148,500

49,500
100%

0%
49,500

0
Chrom

e 6 O
perations (estim

ated)
780,000

0
780,000

100%
0%

780,000
0

Equipm
ent/Technology

422,000
211,000

211,000
100%

0%
211,000

0
Studies/Reports

225,000
112,500

112,500
100%

0%
112,500

0
M

eter Replacem
ent Program

185,000
185,000

0
100%

0%
0

0
_________

_________
_________

_________
_________

_________
_________

  Subtotal
8,885,000

3,177,000
5,708,000

100.0%
0.0%

5,708,000
0

Expenses Partially Allocated for Extra Capacity Revenue Recovery
Custom

er Service (10%
 for Conservation Prog)

928,000
835,200

92,800
0%

100%
0

92,800
Debt Service

668,000
67,000

601,000
90%

10%
540,900

60,100
CIRP Program

 Less Capitalized Portion
409,000

102,250
306,750

80%
20%

245,400
61,350

Capital Im
provem

ents
2,773,000

693,250
2,079,750

80%
20%

1,663,800
415,950

_________
_________

_________
_________

_________
_________

_________
  Subtotal

4,778,000
1,697,700

3,080,300
79.5%

20.5%
2,450,100

630,200

Total
13,663,000

4,874,700
8,788,300

92.8%
7.2%

8,158,100
630,200

O
ffsetting N

on-Rate Revenues
Property Taxes

727,000
259,380

467,620
40%

60%
187,048

280,572
All O

ther N
on-Rate Revenues

2,229,000
795,265

1,433,735
100%

0%
1,433,735

0
_________

_________
_________

_________
_________

_________
_________

  Subtotal
2,956,000

1,054,645
1,901,355

85.2%
14.8%

1,620,783
280,572

W
ater Flow

 Charge Recovery w
ith Base vs. Extra Capacity Cost Allocations

Usage Rate Allocation

47



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  31 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

The following table derives water usage rates for each rate class and tier  The rates are calculated for 
January 1, 2027, the final year of the 5-year rate projections.  Rates derived for each class and tier are 
based on a) net costs allocated to each tier divided by b) projected water use in each tier.   

 Base costs are allocated on a pro-rata basis to all water use; each unit of water pays the 
same.   

 Extra Capacity costs are allocated for recovery from higher tiers based on the share of 
water in each tier that exceeds base levels of use based on analysis of monthly water use 
data over the past 5 years.   

 A portion of property tax revenues allocated toward offsetting volumetric rates is fully 
allocated to Tier 1, resulting in a partial reduction of the Tier 1 rate.  All customers with 
3/4-inch and 1-inch meters benefit from partially reduced Tier 1 rates as their water use 
is first billed in Tier 1 regardless of how much they use. 

 A proportionate share of costs are applied to the uniform water quantity charges 
calculated for customers with larger meter sizes, resulting in charges for all other 
customers that equal the weighted average rate from the tiered rates for customers with 
3/4-inch and 1-inch meters.  This approach ensures equity between customer classes. 
These larger customers are not a homogenous group and can include anything from an 
office or apartment building to a school or hospital.  As such, it is challenging and 
problematic to establish tiers that can reasonably apply to such a wide range of customer 
types and usage patterns.  Hence the District, like most water agencies in California, 
charges a uniform rate to larger commercial and institutional customers.  These 
customers do not get the benefit of the lower Tier 1 rates but also do not pay more per 
unit for higher levels of water use.  Only about 1% of the District’s customers are served 
by larger meters. 

 
 

48



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  32 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

 

All O
ther

Tier 1
Tier 2

Tier 3
Tier 4

A
ll

0 - 5
5.01 - 10

10.01 - 20
20.01+

Subtotal
U

se

Projected W
ater U

se (hcf)
187,100

79,000
62,100

63,500
391,700

74,700
   %

 of Total Use
40.1%

16.9%
13.3%

13.6%
84.0%

16.0%

Extra Capacity Cost Allocation
  %

 of W
ater in Class &

 Tier for Extra Capacity Cost Recovery
0.0%

12.0%
44.7%

77.3%
22.0%

22.0%
  V

olum
e of W

ater for Extra Capacity Cost Recovery
0

9,480
27,759

49,086
86,324

16,463
  %

 of Total W
ater for Extra Capacity Cost Recovery

0.0%
9.2%

27.0%
47.8%

84.0%
16.0%

Base W
ater Flow

 Charge ($/hcf)
$14.76

$14.76
$14.76

$14.76
$14.76

Adjustm
ents for Extra Capacity &

 Prop Tax Allocations ($/hcf)
Extra Capacity Expenses

$630,200
$0

$58,123
$170,192

$300,950
$100,935

Less A
llocated Prop Tax O

ffset
(280,572)

(235,635)
0

0
0

(44,937)
_________

_________
_________

_________
_________

Total
(235,635)

58,123
170,192

300,950
55,997

Divided by W
ater U

se in Tier
187,100

79,000
62,100

63,500
74,700

N
et A

djustm
ents ($/hcf)

($1.26)
$0.74

$2.74
$4.74

$0.74

W
ater Flow

 Charges Effective Jan-1, 2027 ($/hcf)
$13.50

$15.50
$17.50

$19.50
$15.50

3/4" and 1" M
eters

W
ater Flow

 Charge D
erivation

49



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  33 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

6.6 Private Fire Protection Charges 
JBWD provides water to 24 private fire service connections.  While the District’s water system is 
generally sized to provide capacity for fire flow to benefit all properties served by the District, 
customers with separate private fire service connections receive additional benefit for having direct 
fire service connections and the District has to maintain its infrastructure leading up to the service 
lateral.  Unlike regular ongoing water service, private fire service is essentially a stand-by service that 
is rarely used.  In line with industry standards and historical District practice, Private Fire Protection 
Charges are conservatively calculated at 10% of the standard Basic Monthly Fee and proportionally 
applied to the capacity of each service size. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
. 

Current Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
Rates 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Projected Basic Monthly Fee 30 gpm $41.35 $43.40 $45.55 $47.80 $50.20 $52.70
  10% Allocation 4.140 4.340 4.560 4.780 5.020 5.270

Private Fire Protection Charges
Fixed monthly charge based on the size of each service connection
Service Size Accounts Capacity
2 inches ### 2 160 gpm $22.05 $23.15 $24.29 $25.49 $26.77 $28.11
3 inches ### 0 300 gpm 41.34 43.40 45.60 47.80 50.20 52.70
4 inches ### 7 500 gpm 68.91 72.34 75.91 79.66 83.66 87.84
6 inches ### 6 1,000 gpm 137.81 144.69 151.81 159.31 167.31 175.69
8 inches ### 9 1,600 gpm 220.50 231.50 242.90 254.90 267.70 281.10

Projected Private Fire Service Charges
Projected Rates Effective

50



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  34 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

7 PROPOSED RATES & IMPACTS 

7.1 Proposed Maximum Rates 
The following table shows a 5-year schedule of proposed water rates.  Rate increases are gradually 
phased in over the next 5 years based on the annual rate increases identified in the financial 
projections.  The proposed rates are maximum rates.  The District anticipates reevaluating rates and 
finances in future years with the goal of only implementing rate increases as needed.   
 

 

Current
Water Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
Rates 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

BASIC MONTHLY FEE
Fixed monthly charge based on meter size

Meter Size
3/4 & 1 inch $41.35 $43.40 $45.55 $47.80 $50.20 $52.70
1-1/2 inches 137.83 144.67 151.83 159.33 167.33 175.67
2 inches 220.53 231.47 242.93 254.93 267.73 281.07
3 inches 413.50 434.00 455.50 478.00 502.00 527.00

MONTHLY WATER FLOW CHARGES
Billed based on metered water use, as measured in units of one hundred cubic feet ($/hcf)

For 3/4" and 1" Meters
Tier 1 0 - 5 units $6.20 $7.80 $9.50 $11.00 $12.30 $13.50
Tier 2 5.01 - 10 units 7.70 9.50 11.30 12.90 14.25 15.50
Tier 3 10.01 - 20 units 9.20 11.20 13.10 14.80 16.20 17.50
Tier 4 20.01 + units 10.70 12.90 14.90 16.70 18.15 19.50

For 1-1/2", 2" and 3" Meters
Unit rate for all water use $7.70 $9.50 $11.30 $12.90 $14.25 $15.50____________
Note: 1 unit = one hundred cubic feet (hcf), or approximately 748 gallons.

PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION CHARGES
Fixed monthly charge based on size of service connection
Service Size Capacity
2 inches 1 160 gpm $22.05 $23.15 $24.29 $25.49 $26.77 $28.11
3 inches 0 300 gpm 41.34 43.40 45.55 47.80 50.20 52.70
4 inches 6 500 gpm 68.91 72.34 75.91 79.66 83.66 87.84
6 inches 4 1,000 gpm 137.81 144.69 151.81 159.31 167.31 175.69
8 inches 7 1,600 gpm 220.50 231.50 242.90 254.90 267.70 281.10

Proposed Maximum Water Rates
Projected Rates Effective

51



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  35 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

7.2 Water Rate Impacts 
The table on the following page shows the impacts of the proposed water rates on monthly bills for 
customers with 3/4-inch and 1-inch meters at a range of levels of water use.  With full implementation 
of the proposed rate increases, the monthly bill for a typical single family home with 6 hcf of water 
use would gradually increase from the current level of $80.05 to $135.70 over the next 5 years.  This 
equates to a total 5-year increase of 69.5% and an average annual compounded increase of 11.1% per 
year.  More than half of the District’s bills are currently at or below this level of use.   
 

 
 
 

Monthly Current
Use % of % of Bills Monthly Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
(hcf) Bills at or Below Bill    2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 $/month Ttl % Avg%/Yr

0 5.0% Excl Zeros $41.35 $43.40 $45.55 $47.80 $50.20 $52.70 $11.35 27.4% 5.0%
1 9.9% 10.4% 47.55 51.20 55.05 58.80 62.50 66.20 18.65 39.2% 6.8%
2 10.9% 21.9% 53.75 59.00 64.55 69.80 74.80 79.70 25.95 48.3% 8.2%
3 10.6% 33.0% 59.95 66.80 74.05 80.80 87.10 93.20 33.25 55.5% 9.2%
4 9.5% 43.0% 66.15 74.60 83.55 91.80 99.40 106.70 40.55 61.3% 10.0%
5 8.1% 51.6% 72.35 82.40 93.05 102.80 111.70 120.20 47.85 66.1% 10.7%
6 6.6% 58.4% 80.05 91.90 104.35 115.70 125.95 135.70 55.65 69.5% 11.1%
7 5.5% 64.3% 87.75 101.40 115.65 128.60 140.20 151.20 63.45 72.3% 11.5%
8 4.8% 69.3% 95.45 110.90 126.95 141.50 154.45 166.70 71.25 74.6% 11.8%
9 4.0% 73.5% 103.15 120.40 138.25 154.40 168.70 182.20 79.05 76.6% 12.1%
10 3.1% 76.7% 110.85 129.90 149.55 167.30 182.95 197.70 86.85 78.3% 12.3%
11 2.6% 79.5% 120.05 141.10 162.65 182.10 199.15 215.20 95.15 79.3% 12.4%
12 2.2% 81.7% 129.25 152.30 175.75 196.90 215.35 232.70 103.45 80.0% 12.5%
13 1.9% 83.7% 138.45 163.50 188.85 211.70 231.55 250.20 111.75 80.7% 12.6%
14 1.7% 85.5% 147.65 174.70 201.95 226.50 247.75 267.70 120.05 81.3% 12.6%
15 1.3% 86.9% 156.85 185.90 215.05 241.30 263.95 285.20 128.35 81.8% 12.7%
16 1.2% 88.2% 166.05 197.10 228.15 256.10 280.15 302.70 136.65 82.3% 12.8%
17 1.0% 89.2% 175.25 208.30 241.25 270.90 296.35 320.20 144.95 82.7% 12.8%
18 1.0% 90.2% 184.45 219.50 254.35 285.70 312.55 337.70 153.25 83.1% 12.9%
19 0.8% 91.1% 193.65 230.70 267.45 300.50 328.75 355.20 161.55 83.4% 12.9%
20 0.8% 91.9% 202.85 241.90 280.55 315.30 344.95 372.70 169.85 83.7% 12.9%
21 0.7% 92.6% 213.55 254.80 295.45 332.00 363.10 392.20 178.65 83.7% 12.9%
22 0.6% 93.3% 224.25 267.70 310.35 348.70 381.25 411.70 187.45 83.6% 12.9%
23 0.5% 93.9% 234.95 280.60 325.25 365.40 399.40 431.20 196.25 83.5% 12.9%
24 0.4% 94.3% 245.65 293.50 340.15 382.10 417.55 450.70 205.05 83.5% 12.9%
25 0.4% 94.7% 256.35 306.40 355.05 398.80 435.70 470.20 213.85 83.4% 12.9%

Projected Monthly Bills 5-Year Impact
Billing Impacts (3/4" & 1" Meters)

Median

Average

Low

Typical

52



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  36 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

The billing impacts shown on the table do not account for any potential reduction in future water use 
due to additional conservation.  Customers can help mitigate the impact of the proposed rate 
increases by reducing water use and the cost of water purchases.  Water consumption can vary from 
month to month due to seasonal variations in weather and/or other factors.  Hence customers could 
face a range of impacts throughout the year depending on their level of water use in each billing 
period. 
 

 
 

53



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  37 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

8 WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY RATE SURCHARGES 

8.1 Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges 
JBWD is proposing to authorize a series of Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges that could 
be implemented to support financial stability and help ensure adequate funding for water utility 
operations during periods of water shortages, mandatory cutbacks, or reduced water sales. These 
surcharges would be billed based on metered water use and levied in addition to JBWD’s regular 
water rates.  As proposed, these rates would be temporary surcharges that could be phased in and 
phased out at the discretion of JBWD’s Board of Directors.   
 
The proposed surcharges were developed to correspond with the Water Shortage Contingency Stages 
identified in JBWD’s 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  Each stage may be triggered by a 
declaration from federal or state authorities or JBWD’s Board of Directors.  No surcharges are 
proposed for Stage 1 water shortages.   
 
A table deriving the proposed surcharges is shown on the following page and accounts for a number 
of financial impacts during water shortages and periods of reduced water sales including: 

• A loss of volumetric water rate revenues due to a reduction in the volume of water sales. 

• Reduced variable expenses due to reduced volumes of water production and supply.  The 
analysis accounts for reduced costs for electricity and chemicals related to groundwater 
production based on analysis of the average costs per hcf incurred in 2021 adjusted for cost 
inflation, as well as a reduction in the volume of imported recharge water purchased from 
Mojave Water Agency. 

• A conservative estimate of additional costs the District would need to incur to achieving water 
demand cutback targets, such as costs for an enhanced conservation program and water 
demand mitigation efforts, and costs related to compliance with drought-related regulations. 

54



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  38 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 5 Stage 6
Moderate Severe Critical Emergency Catastrophic
Shortage Shortage Shortage Shortage Failure

Water Shortage or Mandated Reduction 11% - 20% 21% - 30% 31% - 40% 41% - 50% > 50%

Water Demand Reduction Target % 15% 25% 35% 45% 50%

Normal Year Water Use (hcf)
2022/23 498,600 498,600 498,600 498,600 498,600 
2023/24 486,400 486,400 486,400 486,400 486,400 
2024/25 477,900 477,900 477,900 477,900 477,900 
2025/26 471,500 471,500 471,500 471,500 471,500 
2026/27 466,400 466,400 466,400 466,400 466,400 

Water Reduction Target (hcf)
2022/23 74,790 124,650 174,510 224,370 249,300 
2023/24 72,960 121,600 170,240 218,880 243,200 
2024/25 71,685 119,475 167,265 215,055 238,950 
2025/26 70,725 117,875 165,025 212,175 235,750 
2026/27 69,960 116,600 163,240 209,880 233,200 

Net Use with Reduction (hcf)
2022/23 423,810 373,950 324,090 274,230 249,300 
2023/24 413,440 364,800 316,160 267,520 243,200 
2024/25 406,215 358,425 310,635 262,845 238,950 
2025/26 400,775 353,625 306,475 259,325 235,750 
2026/27 396,440 349,800 303,160 256,520 233,200 

Avg Water Flow Rates by Year
2022/23 $9.50 $9.50 $9.50 $9.50 $9.50 
2023/24 11.30 11.30 11.30 11.30 11.30 
2024/25 12.90 12.90 12.90 12.90 12.90 
2025/26 14.25 14.25 14.25 14.25 14.25 
2026/27 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 

Revenue Loss by Year
2022/23 $710,505 $1,184,175 $1,657,845 $2,131,515 $2,368,350 
2023/24 845,127 1,408,545 1,971,963 2,535,381 2,817,090 
2024/25 964,791 1,607,985 2,251,179 2,894,373 3,215,970 
2025/26 1,065,758 1,776,263 2,486,768 3,197,273 3,552,525 
2026/27 1,159,245 1,932,075 2,704,905 3,477,735 3,864,150 

Est. Reduced Expenses due to Lower Use

Variable Cost per Unit ($/hcf)1

2022/23 $2.04 $2.04 $2.04 $2.04 $2.04 
2023/24 2.11 2.11 2.11 2.11 2.11 
2024/25 2.18 2.18 2.18 2.18 2.18 
2025/26 2.26 2.26 2.26 2.26 2.26 
2026/27 2.34 2.34 2.34 2.34 2.34 

Reduced Variable Costs
2022/23 $152,503 $254,171 $355,840 $457,509 $508,343 
2023/24 153,978 256,631 359,283 461,935 513,261 
2024/25 156,583 260,971 365,359 469,748 521,942 
2025/26 159,893 266,488 373,083 479,678 532,976 
2026/27 163,699 272,831 381,964 491,097 545,663 

Add'l Conservation & Compliance Costs2 $0 $50,000 $100,000 $150,000 $200,000 

Net Financial Impact
Revenue Los s - Reduced Exps  + Add'l  Costs

2022/23 $558,002 $980,004 $1,402,005 $1,824,006 $2,060,007 
2023/24 691,149 1,201,914 1,712,680 2,223,446 2,503,829 
2024/25 808,208 1,397,014 1,985,820 2,574,625 2,894,028 
2025/26 905,865 1,559,775 2,213,685 2,867,595 3,219,549 
2026/27 995,546 1,709,244 2,422,941 3,136,638 3,518,487 

Required Rate Surcharge ($/hcf)
Net Financia l  Impact / Net Remaining Use

2022/23 $1.32 $2.62 $4.33 $6.65 $8.26 
2023/24 1.67 3.29 5.42 8.31 10.30 
2024/25 1.99 3.90 6.39 9.80 12.11 
2025/26 2.26 4.41 7.22 11.06 13.66 
2026/27 2.51 4.89 7.99 12.23 15.09 

1 Includes estimated costs for electricity and pumping based on 2021 actual costs and MWA water purchases.
2 Estimate of additional costs that would be incurred to meet water cutback targets for each stage.

Water Shortage Contingency Stages
Derivation of Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges

55



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES  39 
 Joshua Basin Water District - Water Rate Study 

Proposed water shortage contingency rate surcharges are listed in the table below and represent the 
maximum surcharges that JBWD would be authorized to levy during each water shortage contingency 
stage at the discretion of the Board of Directors.  These surcharges can be phased in corresponding 
with escalating water shortages in order to support financial stability under associated escalating 
water reduction requirements.  The surcharges can also be phased out as water use gradually 
rebounds after a water shortage has ended. 
 

 
 
 

Water Shortage Contingency Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 5 Stage 6

Moderate Severe Critical Emergency Catastrophic
Shortage Shortage Shortage Shortage Failure

Water Shortage or Mandated Reduction 11% - 20% 21% - 30% 31% - 40% 41% - 50% > 50%

Maximum Rate Surcharge ($/hcf)
Effective On or After

Mar-1, 2023 $1.32 $2.62 $4.33 $6.65 $8.26 
Jan-1, 2024 1.67 3.29 5.42 8.31 10.30 
Jan-1, 2025 1.99 3.90 6.39 9.80 12.11 
Jan-1, 2026 2.26 4.41 7.22 11.06 13.66 
Jan-1, 2027 2.51 4.89 7.99 12.23 15.09 

Note: 1 unit = one hundred cubic feet (hcf), or approximately 748 gallons.

Proposed Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges

56



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
Financial & Rate Scenarios 

 

57



A                      JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Best Management Practice Scenario Years 1 - 5
1 2 3 4 5

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

1 Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
2 Overall Rate Increase Target 16% 14% 12% 10% 8%
3   Fixed Rate Increase % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
4   Usage Rate Increase % 23.2% 19.0% 15.4% 12.2% 9.3%
5 Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 50 25 25 25 25
6 Growth % 1.0% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
7 Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
8 Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -2.3% -1.9% -1.5% -1.2% -0.9%
9 Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 916 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
10 MWA Rate per AF (+3%/year) $623 $645 $664 $684 $705
11 Interest Earnings Rate 1.0% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
12 Annual Cost Escalator 6.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

13 Beginning Fund Reserves $12,846,000 $13,068,000 $12,971,000 $13,365,000 $12,913,000

14 REVENUES
15 Basic Monthly Fees 2,560,000 2,731,000 2,882,000 3,041,000 3,209,000
16 Water Usage Charges 4,202,000 4,986,000 5,675,000 6,325,000 6,907,000
17 Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 380,000 399,000 419,000 440,000 462,000
18 Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
20 Property Taxes (+2%/year) 672,000 685,000 699,000 713,000 727,000
21 Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 200,000 204,000 208,000 212,000 216,000
22 Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 486,000 250,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
23 Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 128,000 196,000 195,000 200,000 194,000
24 HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 281,000 298,000 310,000 322,000 336,000
25 Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
26 Total Revenues 10,134,000 10,974,000 11,871,000 12,736,000 13,534,000

27 SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project 10,000,000 >>>>
28 SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project 8,000,000 >>>>

30 EXPENSES
31 Operating & Maintenance
32 Production 1,360,000 1,442,000 1,500,000 1,560,000 1,622,000
33 Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 571,000 645,000 664,000 684,000 705,000
34 Distribution 1,212,000 1,285,000 1,336,000 1,389,000 1,445,000
35 Customer Service 778,000 825,000 858,000 892,000 928,000
36 Administration   1,255,000 1,330,000 1,383,000 1,438,000 1,496,000
37 Finance 931,000 987,000 1,026,000 1,067,000 1,110,000
38 Human Resources 267,000 283,000 294,000 306,000 318,000
39 HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 230,000 244,000 254,000 264,000 275,000
40 Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 87,000 92,000 96,000 100,000 104,000
41 Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 44,000 47,000 49,000 190,000 198,000
42 CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 442,000 469,000 488,000 508,000 528,000
43 Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (100,000) (106,000) (110,000) (114,000) (119,000)
44 Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 0 0 0 750,000 780,00045 _________ _________ _________ _________ _________
46   Subtotal 7,077,000 7,543,000 7,838,000 9,034,000 9,390,000

47 Debt Service
48 2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
49 Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) - - - 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
50   Subtotal 268,000 268,000 268,000 668,000 668,000

51 Capital/Non-Operating
52 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 1,785,000 2,500,000 2,588,000 2,679,000 2,773,000
53 Equipment/Technology 300,000 375,000 390,000 406,000 422,000
54 Studies/Reports 300,000 200,000 208,000 216,000 225,000
55 Chromium 6 Project (grant & loan funded) 0 18,000,000 >>>> 0 0
56 Meter Replacement Program 182,000 185,000 185,000 185,000 185,000
57 Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
59   Subtotal 2,567,000 21,260,000 3,371,000 3,486,000 3,605,000

60 Total Expenses 9,912,000 29,071,000 11,477,000 13,188,000 13,663,000

61 Revenues Less Expenses 222,000 (97,000) 394,000 (452,000) (129,000)

62 Ending Fund Reserves 13,068,000 12,971,000 13,365,000 12,913,000 12,784,000

63 Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 5,538,500 5,771,500 5,919,000 6,517,000 6,695,000
64 Debt Service Coverage 11.41                              12.80                              15.05                              5.54                                 6.20                                 
65 Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves 222,000                          125,000                          519,000                          67,000                            (62,000)                           58



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

13

14
15
16
17
18
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27
28

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
4445
46

47
48
49

50

51
52
53
54
55
56
57
59

60

61

62

63
64
65

A                      JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Best Management Practice Scenario Years 6 - 10
6 7 8 9 10

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2030/31

Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
Overall Rate Increase Target 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
  Fixed Rate Increase % 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
  Usage Rate Increase % 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 25 25 25 25 25
Growth % 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -0.4% -0.4% -0.4% -0.4% -0.4%
Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
MWA Rate per AF (+3%/year) $726 $748 $770 $793 $817
Interest Earnings Rate 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Annual Cost Escalator 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Beginning Fund Reserves $12,784,000 $12,806,000 $12,786,000 $12,856,000 $12,878,000

REVENUES
Basic Monthly Fees 3,369,000 3,521,000 3,680,000 3,846,000 4,019,000
Water Usage Charges 7,341,000 7,604,000 7,877,000 8,159,000 8,452,000
Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 480,000 499,000 519,000 540,000 562,000
Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Property Taxes (+2%/year) 742,000 757,000 772,000 787,000 803,000
Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 220,000 224,000 228,000 233,000 238,000
Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 192,000 192,000 192,000 193,000 193,000
HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 349,000 362,000 377,000 392,000 407,000
Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Total Revenues 14,176,000 14,642,000 15,128,000 15,633,000 16,157,000

SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project
SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project

EXPENSES
Operating & Maintenance
Production 1,687,000 1,754,000 1,824,000 1,897,000 1,973,000
Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 726,000 748,000 770,000 793,000 817,000
Distribution 1,503,000 1,563,000 1,626,000 1,691,000 1,759,000
Customer Service 965,000 1,004,000 1,044,000 1,086,000 1,129,000
Administration   1,556,000 1,618,000 1,683,000 1,750,000 1,820,000
Finance 1,154,000 1,200,000 1,248,000 1,298,000 1,350,000
Human Resources 331,000 344,000 358,000 372,000 387,000
HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 286,000 297,000 309,000 321,000 334,000
Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 108,000 112,000 116,000 121,000 126,000
Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 206,000 214,000 223,000 232,000 241,000
CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 549,000 571,000 594,000 618,000 643,000
Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (124,000) (129,000) (134,000) (139,000) (145,000)
Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 811,000 843,000 877,000 912,000 948,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 9,758,000 10,139,000 10,538,000 10,952,000 11,382,000

Debt Service
2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000

Capital/Non-Operating
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2,870,000 2,970,000 3,074,000 3,182,000 3,293,000
Equipment/Technology 439,000 457,000 475,000 494,000 514,000
Studies/Reports 234,000 243,000 253,000 263,000 274,000
Chromium 6 Project (grant & loan funded) 0 0 0 0 0
Meter Replacement Program 185,000 185,000 50,000 52,000 54,000
Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 3,728,000 3,855,000 3,852,000 3,991,000 4,135,000

Total Expenses 14,154,000 14,662,000 15,058,000 15,611,000 16,185,000

Revenues Less Expenses 22,000 (20,000) 70,000 22,000 (28,000)

Ending Fund Reserves 12,806,000 12,786,000 12,856,000 12,878,000 12,850,000

Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 6,879,000 7,069,500 7,269,000 7,476,000 7,691,000
Debt Service Coverage 6.61                                 6.74                                 6.87                                 7.01                                 7.15                                 
Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves (40,000)                           (60,000)                           10,000                            32,000                            4,000                              59



B                      JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Reduced Rate Scenario Years 1 - 5
1 2 3 4 5

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

1 Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
2 Overall Rate Increase Target 14% 12% 10% 8% 8%
3   Fixed Rate Increase % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
4   Usage Rate Increase % 19.9% 16.0% 12.6% 9.4% 9.4%
5 Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 50 25 25 25 25
6 Growth % 1.0% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
7 Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
8 Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -2.0% -1.6% -1.3% -0.9% -0.9%
9 Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 916 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
10 MWA Rate per AF (+3%/year) $623 $645 $664 $684 $705
11 Interest Earnings Rate 1.0% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
12 Annual Cost Escalator 6.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

13 Beginning Fund Reserves $12,846,000 $13,023,000 $12,759,000 $12,856,000 $11,957,000

14 REVENUES
15 Basic Monthly Fees 2,560,000 2,731,000 2,882,000 3,041,000 3,209,000
16 Water Usage Charges 4,157,000 4,820,000 5,382,000 5,885,000 6,344,000
17 Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 380,000 399,000 419,000 440,000 462,000
18 Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
20 Property Taxes (+2%/year) 672,000 685,000 699,000 713,000 727,000
21 Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 200,000 204,000 208,000 212,000 216,000
22 Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 486,000 250,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
23 Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 128,000 195,000 191,000 193,000 179,000
24 HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 281,000 298,000 310,000 322,000 336,000
25 Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
26 Total Revenues 10,089,000 10,807,000 11,574,000 12,289,000 12,956,000

27 SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project 10,000,000 >>>>
28 SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project 8,000,000 >>>>

30 EXPENSES
31 Operating & Maintenance
32 Production 1,360,000 1,442,000 1,500,000 1,560,000 1,622,000
33 Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 571,000 645,000 664,000 684,000 705,000
34 Distribution 1,212,000 1,285,000 1,336,000 1,389,000 1,445,000
35 Customer Service 778,000 825,000 858,000 892,000 928,000
36 Administration   1,255,000 1,330,000 1,383,000 1,438,000 1,496,000
37 Finance 931,000 987,000 1,026,000 1,067,000 1,110,000
38 Human Resources 267,000 283,000 294,000 306,000 318,000
39 HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 230,000 244,000 254,000 264,000 275,000
40 Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 87,000 92,000 96,000 100,000 104,000
41 Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 44,000 47,000 49,000 190,000 198,000
42 CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 442,000 469,000 488,000 508,000 528,000
43 Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (100,000) (106,000) (110,000) (114,000) (119,000)
44 Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 0 0 0 750,000 780,00045 _________ _________ _________ _________ _________
46   Subtotal 7,077,000 7,543,000 7,838,000 9,034,000 9,390,000

47 Debt Service
48 2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
49 Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) - - - 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
50   Subtotal 268,000 268,000 268,000 668,000 668,000

51 Capital/Non-Operating
52 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 1,785,000 2,500,000 2,588,000 2,679,000 2,773,000
53 Equipment/Technology 300,000 375,000 390,000 406,000 422,000
54 Studies/Reports 300,000 200,000 208,000 216,000 225,000
55 Chromium 6 Project (grant & loan funded) 0 18,000,000 >>>> 0 0
56 Meter Replacement Program 182,000 185,000 185,000 185,000 185,000
57 Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
59   Subtotal 2,567,000 21,260,000 3,371,000 3,486,000 3,605,000

60 Total Expenses 9,912,000 29,071,000 11,477,000 13,188,000 13,663,000

61 Revenues Less Expenses 177,000 (264,000) 97,000 (899,000) (707,000)

62 Ending Fund Reserves 13,023,000 12,759,000 12,856,000 11,957,000 11,250,000

63 Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 5,538,500 5,771,500 5,919,000 6,517,000 6,695,000
64 Debt Service Coverage 11.24                              12.18                              13.94                              4.87                                 5.34                                 
65 Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves 177,000                          (87,000)                           10,000                            (889,000)                        (1,596,000)                     60



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

13

14
15
16
17
18
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27
28

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
4445
46

47
48
49

50

51
52
53
54
55
56
57
59

60

61

62

63
64
65

B                      JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Reduced Rate Scenario Years 6 - 10
6 7 8 9 10

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2030/31

Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
Overall Rate Increase Target 8% 6% 6% 4% 4%
  Fixed Rate Increase % 5% 5% 5% 4% 4%
  Usage Rate Increase % 9.3% 6.4% 6.4% 4.0% 4.0%
Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 25 25 25 25 25
Growth % 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -0.9% -0.6% -0.6% -0.4% -0.4%
Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
MWA Rate per AF (+3%/year) $726 $748 $770 $793 $817
Interest Earnings Rate 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Annual Cost Escalator 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Beginning Fund Reserves $11,250,000 $10,768,000 $10,497,000 $10,487,000 $10,544,000

REVENUES
Basic Monthly Fees 3,386,000 3,573,000 3,769,000 3,958,000 4,136,000
Water Usage Charges 6,838,000 7,321,000 7,728,000 8,103,000 8,393,000
Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 485,000 509,000 534,000 555,000 577,000
Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Property Taxes (+2%/year) 742,000 757,000 772,000 787,000 803,000
Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 220,000 224,000 228,000 233,000 238,000
Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 169,000 162,000 157,000 157,000 158,000
HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 349,000 362,000 377,000 392,000 407,000
Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Total Revenues 13,672,000 14,391,000 15,048,000 15,668,000 16,195,000

SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project
SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project

EXPENSES
Operating & Maintenance
Production 1,687,000 1,754,000 1,824,000 1,897,000 1,973,000
Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 726,000 748,000 770,000 793,000 817,000
Distribution 1,503,000 1,563,000 1,626,000 1,691,000 1,759,000
Customer Service 965,000 1,004,000 1,044,000 1,086,000 1,129,000
Administration   1,556,000 1,618,000 1,683,000 1,750,000 1,820,000
Finance 1,154,000 1,200,000 1,248,000 1,298,000 1,350,000
Human Resources 331,000 344,000 358,000 372,000 387,000
HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 286,000 297,000 309,000 321,000 334,000
Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 108,000 112,000 116,000 121,000 126,000
Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 206,000 214,000 223,000 232,000 241,000
CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 549,000 571,000 594,000 618,000 643,000
Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (124,000) (129,000) (134,000) (139,000) (145,000)
Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 811,000 843,000 877,000 912,000 948,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 9,758,000 10,139,000 10,538,000 10,952,000 11,382,000

Debt Service
2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000

Capital/Non-Operating
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2,870,000 2,970,000 3,074,000 3,182,000 3,293,000
Equipment/Technology 439,000 457,000 475,000 494,000 514,000
Studies/Reports 234,000 243,000 253,000 263,000 274,000
Chromium 6 Project (grant & loan funded) 0 0 0 0 0
Meter Replacement Program 185,000 185,000 50,000 52,000 54,000
Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 3,728,000 3,855,000 3,852,000 3,991,000 4,135,000

Total Expenses 14,154,000 14,662,000 15,058,000 15,611,000 16,185,000

Revenues Less Expenses (482,000) (271,000) (10,000) 57,000 10,000

Ending Fund Reserves 10,768,000 10,497,000 10,487,000 10,544,000 10,554,000

Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 6,879,000 7,069,500 7,269,000 7,476,000 7,691,000
Debt Service Coverage 5.86                                 6.37                                 6.75                                 7.06                                 7.21                                 
Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves (2,078,000)                     (2,349,000)                     (2,359,000)                     (2,302,000)                     (2,292,000)                     61



C                      JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Limit Rate Increases to 9% Years 1 - 5
1 2 3 4 5

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

1 Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Mar-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
2 Overall Rate Increase Target 9% 9% 9% 9% 9%
3   Fixed Rate Increase % 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
4   Usage Rate Increase % 11.6% 11.5% 11.3% 11.2% 11.1%
5 Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 50 25 25 25 25
6 Growth % 1.0% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
7 Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
8 Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -1.2% -1.1% -1.1% -1.1% -1.1%
9 Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 916 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
10 MWA Rate per AF (+3%/year) $623 $645 $664 $684 $705
11 Interest Earnings Rate 1.0% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
12 Annual Cost Escalator 6.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

13 Beginning Fund Reserves $12,846,000 $12,907,000 $12,777,000 $12,943,000 $12,141,000

14 REVENUES
15 Basic Monthly Fees 2,560,000 2,731,000 2,882,000 3,041,000 3,209,000
16 Water Usage Charges 4,041,000 4,455,000 4,862,000 5,302,000 5,781,000
17 Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 380,000 399,000 419,000 440,000 462,000
18 Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
20 Property Taxes (+2%/year) 672,000 685,000 699,000 713,000 727,000
21 Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 200,000 204,000 208,000 212,000 216,000
22 Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 486,000 250,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
23 Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 128,000 194,000 192,000 194,000 182,000
24 HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 281,000 298,000 310,000 322,000 336,000
25 Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
26 Total Revenues 9,973,000 10,441,000 11,055,000 11,707,000 12,396,000

27 SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project 10,000,000 >>>>
28 SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project 8,000,000 >>>>

30 EXPENSES
31 Operating & Maintenance
32 Production 1,360,000 1,442,000 1,500,000 1,560,000 1,622,000
33 Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 571,000 645,000 664,000 684,000 705,000
34 Distribution 1,212,000 1,285,000 1,336,000 1,389,000 1,445,000
35 Customer Service 778,000 825,000 858,000 892,000 928,000
36 Administration   1,255,000 1,330,000 1,383,000 1,438,000 1,496,000
37 Finance 931,000 987,000 1,026,000 1,067,000 1,110,000
38 Human Resources 267,000 283,000 294,000 306,000 318,000
39 HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 230,000 244,000 254,000 264,000 275,000
40 Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 87,000 92,000 96,000 100,000 104,000
41 Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 44,000 47,000 49,000 190,000 198,000
42 CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 442,000 469,000 488,000 508,000 528,000
43 Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (100,000) (106,000) (110,000) (114,000) (119,000)
44 Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 0 0 0 750,000 780,00045 _________ _________ _________ _________ _________
46   Subtotal 7,077,000 7,543,000 7,838,000 9,034,000 9,390,000

47 Debt Service
48 2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
49 Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) - - - 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
50   Subtotal 268,000 268,000 268,000 668,000 668,000

51 Capital/Non-Operating
52 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 1,785,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
53 Equipment/Technology 300,000 375,000 390,000 406,000 422,000
54 Studies/Reports 300,000 200,000 208,000 216,000 225,000
55 Chromium 6 Project (grant & loan funded) 0 18,000,000 >>>> 0 0
56 Meter Replacement Program 182,000 185,000 185,000 185,000 185,000
57 Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
59   Subtotal 2,567,000 20,760,000 2,783,000 2,807,000 2,832,000

60 Total Expenses 9,912,000 28,571,000 10,889,000 12,509,000 12,890,000

61 Revenues Less Expenses 61,000 (130,000) 166,000 (802,000) (494,000)

62 Ending Fund Reserves 12,907,000 12,777,000 12,943,000 12,141,000 11,647,000

63 Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 5,538,500 5,771,500 5,919,000 6,517,000 6,695,000
64 Debt Service Coverage 10.81                              10.81                              12.00                              4.00                                 4.50                                 
65 Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves 61,000                            (69,000)                           97,000                            (705,000)                        (1,199,000)                     62



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

13

14
15
16
17
18
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27
28

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
4445
46

47
48
49

50

51
52
53
54
55
56
57
59

60

61

62

63
64
65

C                      JBWD Cash Flow Projections  -  Limit Rate Increases to 9% Years 6 - 10
6 7 8 9 10

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2030/31

Effective Date of Rate Adjustment Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1 Jan-1
Overall Rate Increase Target 8% 8% 8% 7% 6%
  Fixed Rate Increase % 5% 4% 4% 4% 4%
  Usage Rate Increase % 9.5% 9.9% 9.8% 8.3% 6.8%
Growth: New 1" Meters or Equivalents 25 25 25 25 25
Growth % 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Wtr Demand Elasticity (Response to Rate Incr) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10) (0.10)
Change in Water Use After Rate Increase -0.9% -1.0% -1.0% -0.8% -0.7%
Water Purchases from MWA (AF) 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
MWA Rate per AF (+3%/year) $726 $748 $770 $793 $817
Interest Earnings Rate 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Annual Cost Escalator 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Beginning Fund Reserves $11,647,000 $11,482,000 $11,416,000 $11,414,000 $11,349,000

REVENUES
Basic Monthly Fees 3,386,000 3,555,000 3,715,000 3,883,000 4,058,000
Water Usage Charges 6,279,000 6,769,000 7,312,000 7,870,000 8,383,000
Basic Monthly Fees: Locked Meters 485,000 504,000 524,000 545,000 567,000
Standby Revenue 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Property Taxes (+2%/year) 742,000 757,000 772,000 787,000 803,000
Private Fire Svc & Special Services (+2%/year) 220,000 224,000 228,000 233,000 238,000
Water Capacity & Meter Install Fees 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000 258,000
Interest Earnings & Gain Loss/Chg Mkt Value 175,000 172,000 171,000 171,000 170,000
HDMC WWTP Reimbursements 349,000 362,000 377,000 392,000 407,000
Other Revenues 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Total Revenues 13,119,000 13,826,000 14,582,000 15,364,000 16,109,000

SRF Grant for Chromium 6 Project
SRF Loan for Chromium 6 Project

EXPENSES
Operating & Maintenance
Production 1,687,000 1,754,000 1,824,000 1,897,000 1,973,000
Recharge Water Purchases from MWA 726,000 748,000 770,000 793,000 817,000
Distribution 1,503,000 1,563,000 1,626,000 1,691,000 1,759,000
Customer Service 965,000 1,004,000 1,044,000 1,086,000 1,129,000
Administration   1,556,000 1,618,000 1,683,000 1,750,000 1,820,000
Finance 1,154,000 1,200,000 1,248,000 1,298,000 1,350,000
Human Resources 331,000 344,000 358,000 372,000 387,000
HDMC WWTP Operations (reimburseable) 286,000 297,000 309,000 321,000 334,000
Standby Admin/Developmt & Engineering 108,000 112,000 116,000 121,000 126,000
Add'l Staffing Needs (deferred & reduced) 206,000 214,000 223,000 232,000 241,000
CIRP Program (Operating Portion) 549,000 571,000 594,000 618,000 643,000
Capitalized Overhead Adjustment (124,000) (129,000) (134,000) (139,000) (145,000)
Chrome 6 Operations (estimated) 811,000 843,000 877,000 912,000 948,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 9,758,000 10,139,000 10,538,000 10,952,000 11,382,000

Debt Service
2018 Installment Sale Agmt (CIRP) 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
Chrome 6 SRF Loan ($8M, 2.75%, 30-Yr) 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000 668,000

Capital/Non-Operating
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2,000,000 2,200,000 2,600,000 3,000,000 3,300,000
Equipment/Technology 439,000 457,000 475,000 494,000 514,000
Studies/Reports 234,000 243,000 253,000 263,000 274,000
Chromium 6 Project (grant & loan funded) 0 0 0 0 0
Meter Replacement Program 185,000 185,000 50,000 52,000 54,000
Admin Building & Financing (excluded) 0 0 0 0 0_________ _________ _________ _________ _________
  Subtotal 2,858,000 3,085,000 3,378,000 3,809,000 4,142,000

Total Expenses 13,284,000 13,892,000 14,584,000 15,429,000 16,192,000

Revenues Less Expenses (165,000) (66,000) (2,000) (65,000) (83,000)

Ending Fund Reserves 11,482,000 11,416,000 11,414,000 11,349,000 11,266,000

Min Fund Rsrv Target (50% O&M + $2M) 6,879,000 7,069,500 7,269,000 7,476,000 7,691,000
Debt Service Coverage 5.03                                 5.52                                 6.05                                 6.60                                 7.08                                 
Cumulative Change in Fund Reserves (1,364,000)                     (1,430,000)                     (1,432,000)                     (1,497,000)                     (1,580,000)                     63



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Proposition 218 Notice of Proposed 
Water Rate Increases 

 

64



  1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Water Rate Increases 
 
Dear Parcel Owner or Customer,   
 
The Joshua Basin Water District (JBWD)  is proposing to phase  in a series of water rate  increases over the next five 
years.  The rate increases are needed to provide adequate funding for rehabilitation and replacement of aging water 
system infrastructure, help fund the construction and operation of new Chromium 6 water treatment facilities to meet 
new state regulatory requirements, and keep up with cost inflation.   
 
The rates shown in this notice are proposed maximum rates.  The District anticipates reevaluating rates in future years 
and only  increasing  rates as needed.   The proposed  rates were developed by an  independent  rate consultant and 
incorporate input from JBWD staff and the District’s Citizens Advisory Council, a group of local community members 
that provide input to the Board of Directors. To date, six public meetings have been held to develop and deliberate the 
proposed rates.  The proposed rate increases are phased in gradually over the next five years to minimize the annual 
impact on customers.   
 

Public Hearing on Proposed Water Rate Increases 
JBWD will hold a public hearing on the proposed rate increases as follows:   
 

Date:  February 15, 2023 
Time:  5:30 PM  
Place:  Joshua Basin Water District ‐ Board Room 
  61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252 
 

Please check our website at www.jbwd.com for the latest information about the meeting, including a Zoom link.  If 
JBWD determines to hold the Public Hearing solely via the internet or teleconferencing due to a state of emergency 
or public health concern pursuant to California Government Code 54953 or other applicable law, information will 
be posted on our website at www.jbwd.com as soon as possible and included in the meeting agenda. 

 

Community Workshop 
Members of the public are also  invited to attend a Community Workshop to  learn more about the District and the 
proposed rate increases, ask questions, and provide input.   
 

Date:  January 10, 2023 
Time:  5:00 PM  
Place:  Joshua Tree Community Center 
  6171 Sunburst Ave, Joshua Tree, CA 92252 

   

Please check our website at www.jbwd.com in case there are any changes to the proposed meeting time or location. 
 
We understand that rate  increases place additional burden on our customers, particularly those on fixed or  limited 
incomes, and plan to re‐evaluate our finances and rates each year and only  implement rate  increases as needed to 
ensure rates continue to recover the costs of providing service without unnecessary increases.  Please see Page 4 of 
this notice for information about our low income discount program and other community resources.  As a public utility, 
JBWD does not profit from charges for water service.  Pursuant to California law, 100% of water rate revenues are used 
to fund water system expenses. 

65



  2 

Why Are Rate Increases Needed? 
JBWD is a financially self‐supporting government agency that relies primarily on revenues from water rates to fund the 
costs of operating and maintaining our local water system.  Rate increases are needed to support safe, reliable, and 
sustainable water service.  Some key factors driving the need for rate increases include: 

 Rehabilitation and Replacement of Aging Water System Infrastructure.  JBWD owns and operates over 310 miles 
of pipelines, 5 wells, 17 water storage tanks, 11 pump stations, and a groundwater recharge facility.  Roughly 164 
miles of JBWD’s water pipelines were installed 40 to 75 years ago and are approaching the end of their useful lives.  
Many old pipelines are  inadequately sized and no  longer meet  fire  flow requirements.   Other aging  facilities – 
including old pump stations, wells and water tanks – will need to be rebuilt or refurbished in upcoming years.  An 
engineering analysis of the water system identifies the need for $2.5 million of annual funding each year over the 
next  roughly 30 years  to gradually  replace aging  infrastructure.   The District’s prior  rate  increases enabled  the 
District to establish an in‐house Capital Improvement Replacement Program (CIRP) and hire local staff to address 
funding needs on a more cost‐effective basis.   The District estimates that our  in‐house CIRP program produces 
savings of at least 30% over outsourcing such projects.  However, additional funding is needed to keep the District 
from falling behind its replacement schedule, which would result in further inflationary costs. 

 New California Chromium 6 Regulations.    JBWD’s groundwater contains  trace amounts of naturally occurring 
Chromium 6.  While the levels of Chromium 6 are well below current federal and statewide standards, California’s 
State Water Resources Control Board is in process of establishing new more‐stringent regulations that will require 
JBWD to fund the construction and operation of new Chromium 6 treatment facilities.   JBWD  is evaluating new 
treatment technologies and pursuing grants and low‐interest‐rate loans to help fund these new facilities.   

 Keep  Up with  Cost  Inflation.    JBWD  is  also  facing  inflationary  cost  increases  that will  require  ongoing  rate 
adjustments to keep revenues in line with the costs of providing service. 

 JBWD  is  a  small  agency, with  approximately 5,600  service  connections  to  share  the  cost of  fixed operational 
expenses.  This results in a cost‐share per connection that is greater than larger neighboring agencies. 

 
What Do Your Rates Pay For? 
The  chart  on  the  right  shows  a  breakdown  of  projected 
expenses for the fiscal year starting July 1, 2026, the last year 
of  the  proposed  5‐year  rate  adjustments.  The  breakdown 
reflects  JBWD’s  anticipated  funding  needs  for  annual 
operating  and maintenance  expenses,  capital  improvement 
and  replacement  projects,  projected  debt  service  and 
operating  expenses  for  anticipated  new  Chromium  6 
treatment  facilities,  annual  funding  for  imported  water 
purchases  used  to  help  prevent  overdraft  of  the  District’s 
groundwater  basin,  and  other  expenses  for  equipment, 
studies, meter replacements and other miscellaneous costs.  
 
What is the District Doing to Keep Costs Down? 
JBWD has implemented a number of measures over the years to help keep costs down, including efforts to minimize 
staffing and insurance costs and has discontinued planning for a larger administrative building.  In recent years, JBWD 
established  an  in‐house  program  and  construction  crew  to  more  cost‐effectively  replace  aging  pipelines  and 
infrastructure.  Additionally, JBWD was successful in obtaining over $7 million of grant funding for the water recharge 
facilities that have enabled JBWD to start importing water to help reduce overdraft of the  local groundwater basin.  
JBWD will continue to evaluate additional cost‐cutting measures and is seeking funding from grants and low‐interest‐
rate loans to help fund planned new Chromium 6 water treatment facilities. 

Breakdown of Projected Expenses 

66



  3 

Proposed Maximum Water Rates 
JBWD is proposing to phase in a series of water rate increases over the next five years as shown on the table below.  The 
District anticipates reevaluating rates in future years and only implementing increases as needed.  Water rates include 
two components as described below.   

 Basic Monthly Fee:  This is a fixed monthly charge based on the size of the water meter purchased by each customer 
and is billed independent of water consumption. 

 Monthly Water Flow Charges:  These charges are billed based on metered water use.  Charges for customers with 
¾‐inch and 1‐inch meters are billed according to a four‐tiered rate structure with water purchased first in Tier 1 and 
then subsequently in higher Tiers as water use increases.  Accounts with larger meters pay a uniform rate for each 
unit of metered water use.  Monthly Water Flow Charges are billed in units of one hundred cubic feet (hcf), equal to 
approximately 748 gallons.  Hence the proposed Tier 1 rate of $7.80 per hundred cubic feet effective March 1, 2023, 
equates to charge of approximately $1.04 per hundred gallons or slightly over 1 cent per gallon. 

 

For example, effective March 1, 2023 the monthly water bill for a typical residential customer with a 3/4 or 1‐inch meter 
and 6 hcf of monthly water use would include a) a fixed charge of $43.40 plus b) water flow charges of $7.80 per unit for 
the  first 5 units and $9.50 per unit  for  the  sixth unit,  resulting  in c) a  total charge of $91.90.   A  limited number of 
customers  also  pay  Private  Fire  Protection  Charges, which  are  fixed monthly  charges  levied  on  approximately  25 
accounts that have separate fire service connections. 
 

   

Current
Water Mar‐1 Jan‐1 Jan‐1 Jan‐1 Jan‐1
Rates 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

BASIC MONTHLY FEE
Fixed monthly charge based on meter size
Meter Size Capacity
3/4 & 1 inch 30 gpm $41.35 $43.40 $45.55 $47.80 $50.20 $52.70
1‐1/2 inches 100 gpm 137.83 144.67 151.83 159.33 167.33 175.67
2 inches 160 gpm 220.53 231.47 242.93 254.93 267.73 281.07
3 inches 300 gpm 413.50 434.00 455.50 478.00 502.00 527.00

MONTHLY WATER FLOW CHARGES
Billed based on metered water use as measured in units of one hundred cubic feet ($/hcf)

For 3/4" and 1" Meters
Tier 1 0 ‐ 5 units $6.20 $7.80 $9.50 $11.00 $12.30 $13.50
Tier 2 5.01 ‐ 10 units 7.70 9.50 11.30 12.90 14.25 15.50
Tier 3 10.01 ‐ 20 units 9.20 11.20 13.10 14.80 16.20 17.50
Tier 4 20.01 + units 10.70 12.90 14.90 16.70 18.15 19.50

For 1‐1/2", 2" and 3" Meters
Unit rate for all water use $7.70 $9.50 $11.30 $12.90 $14.25 $15.50____________
Note: 1 unit = one hundred cubic feet (hcf), or approximately 748 gallons.

PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION CHARGES
Fixed monthly charge based on size of service connection
Service Size Capacity
2 inches 1 160 gpm $22.05 $23.15 $24.29 $25.49 $26.77 $28.11
3 inches 0 300 gpm 41.34 43.40 45.55 47.80 50.20 52.70
4 inches 6 500 gpm 68.91 72.34 75.91 79.66 83.66 87.84
6 inches 4 1,000 gpm 137.81 144.69 151.81 159.31 167.31 175.69
8 inches 7 1,600 gpm 220.50 231.50 242.90 254.90 267.70 281.10

Proposed Maximum Water Rates
Proposed Maximum Rates Effective On or After

67



  4 

Proposed Maximum Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges  
JBWD is also proposing to authorize a series of Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges that could be implemented 
to support  financial stability and help ensure adequate  funding  for water utility operations during periods of water 
shortages, mandatory cutbacks, or reduced water sales.  As proposed, these rates would be temporary surcharges billed 
based on metered water use that would be levied in addition to JBWD’s regular water rates.  The proposed surcharges 
correspond with the Water Shortage Contingency Stages identified in JBWD’s 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  
Each  stage may be  triggered by  a declaration  from  federal or  state  authorities or  JBWD’s Board of Directors.   No 
surcharges are proposed for Stage 1 water shortages.  Proposed water shortage contingency surcharges are listed in the 
table below and represent the maximum surcharges that JBWD would be authorized to levy.  
 

 
 Note: 1 unit = one hundred cubic feet (hcf), or approximately 748 gallons.  

 

Written Protest Procedures 
Parcel owners  (property owners)  and  customers of  record  affected by  the proposed  increases may  submit written 
protests against the proposed water rates.  Pursuant to California law, protests must be submitted in writing and must: 
a) identify the affected property or properties, such as by Assessor’s Parcel Number or service address; b) identify the 
name of the property owner or customer, and c) include the original signature of the parcel owner (property owner) or 
customer of record.  The proposed rates cannot be adopted if written protests are received from a majority of affected 
parcels with one protest counted per parcel.  Written protests should be mailed to:  Joshua Basin Water District, P.O. Box 
675, Joshua Tree, CA 92252 or can be hand‐delivered to JBWD at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252.  All 
protests must be submitted prior to the close of the Public Hearing.  
 

Low Income Discount Program and Customer Assistance Resources  
JBWD has partnered with United Way of the Desert to manage a customer assistance program to help eligible customers 
who are having trouble paying their water bill.  Under the Help2Others Assistance Program, eligible residential customers 
can  receive an annual $100*  credit on  their water bill each year.   More  information about  the program and other 
community resources is available on our website or by contacting United Way of the Desert as follows: 

 Visit JBWD’s website at:   www.jbwd.com/assistance  
 Contact United Way of the Desert:  (760) 323‐2731 ext. 100 

*Beginning approximately March 1, 2023 

Additional Information 
Pursuant  to California Government Code 53759,  there  is  a 120 day  statute of  limitations  for  challenging  any new, 
increased, or extended  fees.   This  statute of  limitations applies  to  the water  rates and water  shortage contingency 
surcharges proposed in this notice and future changes to JBWD’s water rates and charges. 
 
JBWD is committed to operating as cost‐effectively as possible while providing safe and reliable service.  For questions 
or  more  information  about  JBWD  or  the  proposed  rates,  please  contact  us  at  (760)  366‐8438  or  email  us  at 
customerservice@jbwd.com. 

Water Shortage Contingency Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 5 Stage 6
Moderate Severe Critical Emergency Catastrophic
Shortage Shortage Shortage Shortage Failure

Water Shortage or Mandated Reduction 11% ‐ 20% 21% ‐ 30% 31% ‐ 40% 41% ‐ 50% > 50%

Maximum Rate Surcharge ($/hcf)
Effective On or After
Mar‐1, 2023 $1.32  $2.62  $4.33  $6.65  $8.26 
Jan‐1, 2024 1.67  3.29  5.42  8.31  10.30 
Jan‐1, 2025 1.99  3.90  6.39  9.80  12.11 
Jan‐1, 2026 2.26  4.41  7.22  11.06  13.66 
Jan‐1, 2027 2.51  4.89  7.99  12.23  15.09 

Proposed Maximum Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges

68



  RESOLUTION NO. 23-1052 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT ESTABLISHING 
NEW SCHEDULES OF WATER RATES AND CHARGES EFFECTIVE MARCH 1, 2023, AND APPROVING AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE DISTRICT’S RULES AND REGULATIONS WHICH AMENDMENT 1) PROVIDES FOR 

INCREASES TO THE DISTRICT’S WATER RATES AND CHARGES, AND 2) MAKES FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS THAT THE ACTION TAKEN IN THIS RESOLUTION IS EXEMPT FROM THE 

REQUIREMENTS OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)  

(PUBLIC HEARING – FEBRUARY 15, 2023) 

 

WHEREAS, Joshua Basin Water District (“JBWD”) is a county water district organized and 
operating pursuant to California Water Code section 30000 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, JBWD has authority to set and collect rates, fees, and charges for water and water 
service it provides pursuant to the provisions of California Water Code (“Water Code”) sections 31000, 
31001, 31007, 31024, and 31025; and 

WHEREAS, the provisions of Section 6 of Article XIIID of the California Constitution (“Proposition 
218”) are currently applicable to water rates and charges of public agencies and entities, including, but 
not limited to, water and water service rates of public water districts operating within the State under 
current State law; and  

WHEREAS, the JBWD Board of Directors (“Board”) adopted on December 14, 2022, Resolution 
No. 22-1050, entitled, “Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District Approving 
Guidelines for the Submission and Tabulation of Protests in Connection with Rate Hearings Conducted 
Pursuant to Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution” (hereinafter, “Resolution No. 22-
1050”), setting forth the guidelines and procedures for the conduct of a Proposition 218 rate hearing; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board has previously undertaken proceedings and provided direction for 
proposed changes in certain JBWD water rates and charges, including the proposed fixed and usage-
based water rates, private fire protection charges, and water shortage contingency rate surcharges,  as 
further described herein (hereinafter, “Water Rates and Charges”) and directed that notice of such 
proposed changes in such Water Rates and Charges be provided and that a public hearing be held 
thereon as required by State law, as described in Resolution No. 22-1050 and as further described 
herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Rates and Charges, as currently proposed, are set forth in Exhibit A, which 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, written notice of the referenced public hearing, the proposed Water Rates and 
Charges and implementation schedule, and written protest procedures (“Proposition 218 Notice”) has 
been provided to JBWD’s customers as required under applicable State law and as further described 
herein; and 

69



WHEREAS, there has been prepared by JBWD documentation and financial data concerning 
JBWD’s finances, fiscal projections, current and anticipated financial requirements, the costs and 
financing requirements for JBWD to meet its future facilities and water service requirements, and 
JBWD’s adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2022/23, as well as future budgetary projections, and the Joshua 
Basin Water District 2023 Water Rate Study (“Report”) (which Report is incorporated herein by this 
reference), documenting the need for the proposed Water Rates and Charges as described herein, 
which data, information and Report are on file with JBWD’s District Secretary and has been made 
available to members of the public who may request such information and which information has been 
made available to, and in certain cases presented to, the Board as part of its consideration of this 
matter; and 

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2023, the Board conducted and completed a noticed public hearing 
held in the Boardroom of JBWD’s District Office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252, 
and as a virtual (online) video- and teleconference pursuant to the current State of Emergency and State 
law, with the opportunity for members of the public to attend either in-person or virtually, in order to 
provide public input, comments, and written protests with regard to the proposed revised Water Rates 
and Charges according to the procedures outlined in Resolution No. 22-1050; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has carefully reviewed and considered the proposed rate 
increases and has carefully considered all public comment and written protests submitted; and 

WHEREAS, information to support the findings made by the Board within this Resolution has 
been prepared by JBWD staff and consultants, made available to any member of the public who 
requested such information, and has been presented to the Board as part of its consideration of this 
matter; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to make certain findings and determinations in connection with 
proposed Water Rates and Charges as set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the proposed Water Rates and Charges on the basis 
set forth herein, to comply with the schedule attached hereto, and to be effective as set forth within the 
text of this Resolution. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District hereby resolves, 
determines, and orders as follows: 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct, and are incorporated herein as findings 
of the Board by this reference. 

 
2. Notice.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 6(a)(1) of Article XIIID of the California 

Constitution, California Government Code Sections 53755 and 53756, and Resolution No. 22-1050, 
JBWD provided written notice by mailing of the proposed Water Rates and Charges to JBWD’s 
customers of record and property owners of record.  The form of such notice is on file with JBWD’s 
Secretary and has been presented to the Board as part of its proceedings.  Such notice included the 
proposed maximum amount of the water rates and charges to be effective for JBWD’s customers, an 
identification of the reasons for the imposition of such proposed Water Rates and Charges, a method of 
calculation for JBWD’s customers to determine the impact of such revised Water Rates and Charges 

70



upon existing JBWD customer accounts, and the proposed implementation schedule of such Water 
Rates and Charges.  Such notice also included a statement of the date, time and location of the public 
hearing to be conducted on such proposed Water Rates and Charges by the Board and the opportunity 
to present protests concerning such water rate and charge changes to the Board. Mailing of such written 
notice was completed more than forty-five (45) days prior to the date set for conducting the public 
hearing.  The applicable customer list to which such written notice was mailed is held by JBWD’s District 
Secretary.  JBWD also provided notice of such proposed Water Rates and Charges and the public hearing 
as follows: 

a. Notice concerning the proposed Water Rates and Charges and the date, time and place 
for the public hearing was published in the Hi Desert-Star newspaper on February 1, 
2023; 

b. Notice of the proposed Water Rates and Charges, the proposed implementation 
schedule, public hearing, availability of documentation therefor and the opportunity to 
present protests concerning such proposed revised water rates and charges was posted 
on JBWD’s website located at www.jbwd.com for a period of more than forty-five (45) 
days before the date the public hearing was conducted; and 

c. Notice of the proposed Water Rates and Charges, the date, time and place of such 
public hearing and the opportunity to present protests concerning such proposed 
revision of the water rates and charges was posted at the following locations on the 
following dates: 

i. Public Information Kiosk outside the District Office Building  December 27, 2022. 

The Proposition 218 Notice included a statement referencing a 120-day statute of limitations for 
challenging the new/increased water rates and charges as provided for pursuant to provisions of 
Government Code Section 53759(d). 

3. Data and Information Relating to Determination to Adopt and Implement Proposed 
Water Rates and Charges.  The Board has been provided with, and/or had available to it, various 
reports, including, but not limited to, the Report, data and information supporting the findings made 
herein and the determination of the Board to revise JBWD’s Water Rates and Charges as described 
herein.  Reference is also made to those meetings held by the Board, and supporting documentation 
made available to the Board and members of the public, as part of the consideration of the potential 
JBWD imposition of the proposed Water Rates and Charges on on-going and future JBWD financial 
considerations.  Such data and information has been available, and made available, as applicable, to 
members of the public desiring to review such, and is on file with JBWD’s District Secretary and available 
for review upon public request.  Such data and information includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

a. JBWD’s adopted Fiscal Year 2022/23 Budget; 

b. Financial projections relating to JBWD’s financial and operating requirements, including, 
but not limited to, the costs and financing requirements for JBWD to meet its future 
facilities requirements, future imported water purchase costs, future anticipated 
utilities costs and charges; 

71



c. The Report, which was made available to the Board and public at least 10 days prior to 
the hearing; and 

d. Financial considerations relating to the prudent and financially responsible level of 
JBWD’s financial dedicated funds and accounts (fiscal reserves), including policies 
relating thereto as previously established by this Board. 

 
4. Public Hearing.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 6(a)(2) of Article XIIID of the 

California Constitution, JBWD’s Board conducted a public hearing on the proposed Water Rates and 
Charges, and proposed implementation schedule thereof, not less than forty-five (45) days after the 
date of mailing of the within-referenced written notice to JBWD customers of record and owners of 
property served by JBWD, as set forth in Section 2 herein.  Such public hearing was conducted at JBWD’s 
offices (Board Room) located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252, commencing at 5:30 p.m. 
on February 15, 2023. At the time of the public hearing, JBWD’s Board considered all protests against 
the proposed Water Rates and Charges as set forth in Section 5 hereof.  Such public hearing was 
conducted in conformance with the requirements of Resolution 22-1050. During such public hearing, 
the Board was presented with the results of all qualified protests to the proposed Water Rates and 
Charges and heard and considered all public comments submitted to the Board during such public 
hearing and a full and fair hearing was held. 

 
5. No Majority Protest.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 6(a)(2) of Article XIIID of the 

California Constitution and the Policy, JBWD’s District Secretary has reviewed those protests received by 
JBWD with regard to the proposed imposition of the Water Rates and Charges.  Any and all protests 
submitted to JBWD concerning such proposed Water Rates and Charges were handled and considered 
as set forth in Resolution No. 22-1050.  JBWD’s District Secretary has, to the extent necessary, compared 
such protests with JBWD’s customer list and parcel list on file with the District Secretary.  The District 
Secretary has provided the Board with a statement of all such protests.  Based thereon, the Board 
hereby determines that the proposed Water Rates and Charges described herein have not been 
protested by a majority of owners of parcels/customer accounts within JBWD’s service area, and, as 
such, a protest has not been received sufficient to preclude the adoption of the proposed increases to 
the Water Rates and Charges (based on the maximum “Rate Study Scenario A” rates noticed per Section 
2).   

  
6. Findings.  The Board hereby finds and determines as follows: 

a. JBWD’s current and projected finances, financial condition, and revenue requirements, 
based on information available to JBWD and the costs and financing requirements for 
JBWD to meet its future facilities and water service requirements have been considered 
and the Board has adopted a balanced budget for Fiscal Year 2022/23.  Correspondingly, 
the Board hereby finds and determines that the revenues derived from the Water Rates 
and Charges set forth herein do not exceed the funds required by JBWD to provide the 
water and water services JBWD provides to its customers. 

b. The Board hereby determines and directs that revenues derived from the Water Rates 
and Charges set forth herein shall be used for the purposes for which JBWD was formed 

72



and operates, including, but not limited to, the provision of water and water service to 
its customers, as applicable, and shall not be used for other purposes. 

c. JBWD’s proposed Water Usage Charges and, when applicable, Water Shortage 
Contingency Rate Surcharges are based on the amount of water actually used by 
individual JBWD customers within specific billing periods.  Correspondingly, the amount 
of the proposed Water Usage Charges applicable to JBWD’s customers, as well as the 
Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges, when and as applicable, by usage type, 
does not exceed the proportional cost of JBWD’s provision of water and water service to 
such customers. 

d. JBWD’s Basic Monthly Fees and Fire Protection Charges are based on the availability of 
water service (including, but not limited to, emergency water availability) to each 
customer within each corresponding billing period.  Correspondingly, the amount of 
JBWD’s Basic Monthly Fees and Fire Protection Charges during the corresponding billing 
periods for customers do not exceed the cost of JBWD’s provision of water availability 
(including, but not limited to, emergency water availability) and water service to such 
customers. 

e. Section 6(b)(4) of Article XIIID of the California Constitution provides that no fee or 
charge may be imposed for a service unless that service is actually used by, or 
immediately available to, the owner of the property in question.  In the case of JBWD’s 
Water Rates and Charges referenced herein, JBWD’s services for water availability and 
delivery are imposed on customers where such service is actually used by, or is 
immediately available to (including, but not limited to, the availability of emergency 
water service), JBWD customers whom are, and will be, subject to the Water Rates and 
Charges.  JBWD’s revised rates and charges, as set forth herein, do not constitute any 
form of standby charge(s) as set forth in such section of the California Constitution. 

f. JBWD’s water rates and charges are imposed only on its customers for the particular 
and specific water functions and services referenced herein.  JBWD’s water rates and 
charges are, and will be, imposed pursuant to JBWD’s Rules and Regulations as 
applicable to its customers.  JBWD does not, and will not, impose such water rates and 
charges for purposes of the provision of general governmental services such as police, 
fire, ambulance or library services which are available to the public at large. 

g. JBWD’s water rates and charges, as set forth herein, are part of an integrated finance 
and revenue system including water rates and charges, revenue sources, projected 
expenditures, dedicated funds and other financial considerations.  JBWD’s water rates 
and charges are structured and implemented by JBWD in order to meet its financial 
obligations and responsibilities to operate, maintain, replace, restore and improve its 
water systems and facilities, address anticipated emergency service needs, to meet its 
legal and operational obligations and requirements and to conduct its business, 
administrative and governmental operations. 

h. With respect to the water rate and charge schedule described herein, the within-
referenced notices and proceedings complied with Government Code sections 53756 

73



and 53759(d).  The Board determines and directs that provisions of Government Code 
section 53759 shall apply to the actions set forth in this Resolution. 

i. The reasons and basis for the adoption and implementation of the proposed Water 
Rates and Charges, and the method of calculation thereof, have been identified in the 
notices provided as set forth in Section 2 hereof and in the documentation and 
information referenced in Section 3 hereof. 

j. The Water Rates and Charges adopted and implemented hereby are not taxes under 
Section 1(e)(2) and (7) of the provisions of Article XIIIC of the California Constitution 
inasmuch as the referenced water rates and charges are: (i) services/products provided 
directly to the JBWD customer of record and do not exceed the reasonable costs to 
JBWD for the water and water service so provided; and (ii) under current California law 
such water rates and charges are considered to be property-related fees for which 
JBWD has complied with the applicable requirements of Article XIIID of the California 
Constitution 

 
7. Adoption and Implementation of Revised Water Rates and Charges.  The Board hereby 

adopts the proposed Water Rates and Charges as the rates takes the following actions based on the 
findings set forth herein: 

a. JBWD’s Basic Monthly Fees are hereby revised to conform to the schedule attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, including the dates of implementation set out therein, which Exhibit 
is incorporated herein by this reference, unless reduced by the Board through separate 
action. 

b. JBWD’s Monthly Water Flow Charges are hereby revised to conform to the schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, including the dates of implementation set out therein, 
unless reduced by the Board through separate action. 

c. JBWD’s Private Fire Protection Charges are hereby revised to conform to the schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, including the dates of implementation set out therein, 
unless reduced by the Board through separate action. 

d. JBWD’s Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges are hereby adopted to conform 
the schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A, depending on the water shortage stage, if 
any, then in effect, and the dates of implementation, unless reduced by the Board 
through separate action. 

e. The revised Water Rates and Charges adopted hereby shall be effective for JBWD’s 
provision of water and water service as set forth in the schedule attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, including the dates of implementation set out therein, unless reduced by the 
Board through separation action. 

f. JBWD’s other existing rates, fees and charges, which were not subject to the 
proceedings for revision undertaken as described herein, are not amended or revised by 
way of this Resolution, except the extent tied to such Water Rates and Charges.  

g. In the event that the Board shall determine to impose the within-referenced Water 
Rates and Charges at lower levels and/or at later dates than set forth in the attached 

74



schedule, the Board shall take such action(s) and thereafter provide notice of such 
change(s) and/or revision(s) to JBWD’s customers as required by applicable law.  

 
8. Amendment of Rules and Regulations. Articles 13.62, 14.5, 14.6, 14.10, 14.6.2 and 

related articles 1.11, 13.5, 13.6, 13.10, 14.3 of the Joshua Basin Water District’s amended Rules and 
Regulations (based on “Rate Study Scenario A”) as set forth in Exhibit B, are made a part of this 
Resolution and are hereby adopted effective March 1, 2023. 

 
9. Alternate Rate Authority.  The Board of Directors may elect through separate action to  

implement rates at a rate lower than those set forth in the Water Rates and Charge, but shall not 
implement rates higher than such Water Rates and Charges absent a subsequent noticed hearing 
pursuant to Proposition 218. 

 
10. California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).  The action taken herein is exempt from 

the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  Reference: Section 21080 of the 
Public Resources Code and Section 3.10 of the District’s Local Guidelines for Implementation of CEQA.  

  
11. Other Actions.  JBWD’s General Manager and other JBWD officers and staff, as well as 

JBWD’s consultants, are hereby authorized and directed to take all necessary and appropriate actions as 
may be required or desirable to carry out the findings and directives of this Resolution. 

12. Partial Invalidity; Severability.  If any one or more of the findings or directives set forth 
in this Resolution should be contrary to law, then such findings or directives, or such portions thereof, 
shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining findings and directives or 
portions thereof and shall in no way affect the validity of this Resolution or the other directives set out 
herein.  The Board hereby declares that it would have adopted this Resolution and each and every other 
section, paragraph, subdivision, sentence, clause and phrase hereof and would have authorized and 
approved the findings or directives set forth herein irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
sections, paragraphs, subdivisions sentences, clauses or phrases of this Resolution or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstance may be held to be unconstitutional, unenforceable or invalid. 

13. Authority.  This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of applicable law, 
including, but not limited to, Water Code Sections 31000, 31001, 31024, 31025 and 30523 and the 
requirements of Government Code Sections 53755 and 53756. 

14. Superseding Prior Resolutions.  This Resolution upon adoption, and subject to Section 
12, hereby supersedes Resolution No. 18-982, adopted on or about February 21, 2018, to the extent 
Resolution No. 18-982 is in conflict with the findings and directives of this Resolution.  The water rate 
and charge schedules adopted by Resolution Nos. 18-982 shall be superseded and replaced by the 
Water Rate and Charge schedule set forth herein as of the dates set forth herein. 

 

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank 

  

75



15. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption by the 
Board. 

 

ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS 15th day of February 2023. 

 

       _______________________________________ 
       Tom Floen, President 
       Joshua Basin Water District 
 

______________________________________________ 

Sarah Johnson, General Manager/Secretary of the Board 

76



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 

 

  

77



 

78



 

EXHIBIT B 

AMENDED RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Changes denoted in red font and/or  
 
ARTICLE 1.11 Guarantee and Other Water Account Deposits (Amended by Resolution No. 18-993 on 
11/07/2018) (Amended by Resolution No. 19-1009 on 09/18/2019) Amended by Resolution No. 21-1029 on 
02/24/2021)  
 
Before water delivery is started for any new or existing Active Account, the Applicant shall secure 
the account by depositing with the JBWD the amount specified in Article 13.3, unless there is a 
Continuous Service Agreement in place – see Article 1.14.1.  
 
Water service will not be installed, connected, or turned on for any Applicant or customer until all 
delinquent balances are resolved (refer to Article 1.29). In any instance where this policy conflicts 
with the District’s Collection Policy in Appendix A, the Collection Policy will prevail.  
Deposits will not automatically be refunded for customers whose account status changes (Active, 
Transitional, and Inactive). Customers whose account status changes will have to meet the 
satisfactory payment requirements as indicated in this Article before Deposit is refunded or applied 
to account.  
 
Each time that water rates are changed in accordance with Board action, the Guarantee Deposit will 
also be re-calculated and changed, based on the average residential water consumption from the 
most recent water rate study (currently, the 2023 2018 Water Rate Study, and eight [8] units nine 
[9] average consumption per month,) multiplied times three (3) months.  

 

ARTICLE 13.5 Basic Monthly Fee (Amended by Resolution No. 18-982 on 02/21/2018)  

The Basic Monthly Fee is payable for availability of water service, which includes no water used.  All 
accounts, including Active, Transitional and Inactive accounts are billed the Basic Monthly Fee each 
month whether or not there is any water use occurring.  
[Strike old rates]  
Refer to Article 14 for amounts. 
 

ARTICLE 13.6   Monthly Water Flow Charges (Amended by Resolution No. 18-982 on 02/21/2018)  

Water passing through the meter shall be sold at cumulative rates, per unit (one hundred cubic feet, 
748 gallons).   
[Strike old rates]  
 Refer to Article 14 for amounts. 

  

79



[New] ARTICLE 13.6.2 Water Shortage Contingency Rates 

The Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges could be implemented to support financial stability 
and help ensure adequate funding for water utility operations during periods of water shortages, 
mandatory cutbacks, or reduced water sales.  These rates would be temporary surcharges billed based 
on metered water use that would be levied in addition to JBWD’s regular water rates.  The proposed 
surcharges correspond with the Water Shortage Contingency Stages identified in JBWD’s 2020 Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  Each stage may be triggered by a declaration from federal or state 
authorities or JBWD’s Board of Directors.  No surcharges are proposed for Stage 1 water shortages.  
Proposed water shortage contingency surcharges are listed in the table below and represent the 
maximum surcharges that JBWD would be authorized to levy.  
Refer to Article 14 for amounts. 
 

ARTICLE 13.10   Cost and Charges for Private Fire Protection  

Installation cost will be the actual cost plus fifteen percent (15%) to cover administrative and overhead 
cost. Customers that have a Private Fire Protection service are required to pay a monthly charge for 
such service.  
[Strike old rates]  
Refer to Article 14 for amounts. 
 

ARTICLE 14.3 Guarantee Deposit  

Applicants who provide a social security number will have their credit checked. The results of this soft 
credit check will provide either a green, yell, or red “score,” and the deposit amount will be based upon 
the score.  Customers that don’t provide a social security number won’t get a “score,” and will have to 
pay a guarantee deposit.  

  Green =   Good credit, no deposit required  

  Yellow=   Average credit, deposit required  

  Red =   Poor credit, deposit required  

  No Score =  No credit, deposit required  
 
  Effective Date   Guarantee Deposit  

05/01/2023 $332.00   

01/01/2024 $380.00  

01/01/2025 $424.00  

01/01/2026 $463.00  

01/01/2027 $500.00 

  Effective Date   Guarantee Deposit  

 

80



 10/10/19    $225.00  

  01/01/20    $255.00  

  01/01/21    $285.00  

  01/01/22    $310.00  

 

ARTICLE 14.5 Basic Monthly Fee  

The Basic Monthly Fee for availability of water service, which includes no water used, is as follows:  

[Strike old rates]  

  

 
 

ARTICLE 14.6 Monthly Water Flow Charges  

Water passing through the meter shall be sold at the following cumulative rates, per unit (100 cubic 
feet, 748 gallons).  

[Strike old rates]  

 

81



 

[New] ARTICLE 14.6.2 Water Shortage Contingency Rates  

The Water Shortage Contingency Rate Surcharges could be implemented to support financial stability 
and help ensure adequate funding for water utility operations during periods of water shortages, 
mandatory cutbacks, or reduced water sales.   

 
 

ARTICLE 14.10 Cost and Charges for Private Fire Protection  
 

Installation cost will be the actual cost plus fifteen percent (15%) to cover administrative and overhead. 
Monthly charges are as shown below: 

[Strike old rates]  

 
 

 

 

82


	CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
	DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
	PUBLIC COMMENT 
	This is the time set aside for public comment on any District related matter, whether appearing on the agenda or not. Under provisions of the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from taking action on items not listed on the agenda. At the discretion of the Board President, however, comments on a particular Agenized item may be deferred until that item is heard. Please state your name and limit your comments to 3 minutes.
	CONSENT CALENDAR 
	Consent calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, to be acted upon by the Board at one time, without discussion. If a board member would like an item to be handled separately, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate action.
	A. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 01.10.23
	B. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 01.18.23
	C. DRAFT MEETING MINUTES – 02.01.23
	ITEM(S) PULLED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR FOR DISCUSSION
	ACTION CALENDAR 
	A. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER INCREASES TO WATER RATES AND CHARGES
	 Recommend the Board take the following actions:
	1. Accept and file Water Rate Study report.
	2. Hold public hearing to consider rate increase.
	The public hearing should be conducted as follows:
	A. HEARING OPENED BY PRESIDING OFFICER
	B. STAFF/CONSULTANT PRESENTATIONS
	C. QUESTIONS OF STAFF/CONSULTANTS BY BOARD
	D. RECEIVE PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	E. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING
	3. Protests should be tabulated and reported.
	4. Questions of Staff/Consultants by Board.
	B.  CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 23-1052, AS PRESENTED OR AMENDED AT DIRECTION OF THE BOARD, TO ADOPT RATE INCREASE, TAKE RELATED ACTIONS, AND MAKE RELATED FINDINGS.
	INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS
	A. DIRECTOR REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
	For informational purposes only on subjects not covered by the agenda and no action to be taken. The Board may provide staff with requests for future agenda items.
	ATTENDEE(S)
	DATE/TIME
	FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS 
	A. MWA – Board Meeting 
	Jarlsberg
	9:30 am
	02/23/23
	B. JBWD – Board Meeting
	All
	5:30 pm
	03/01/23
	ADJOURNMENT
	INFORMATION
	The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during the discussion of that item.
	Availability of agenda materials:  Materials related to any item on this Agenda submitted to the District Board of Directors of Committee Members after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection at the District’s office, 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252, during normal business hours. All documents supporting this agenda are available on the District website www.jbwd.com, subject to the staff’s availability to post the documents before the meeting.
	Reasonable Accommodation: Any person with a disability, who requires accommodation to view the agenda or to participate in the public comment portion of the Board meeting, should direct such requests to Sarah Johnson, Secretary of the Board of Directors, at 760-366-8438. Please allow three business days for your request to be processed. Requests must be received at least seventy-two (72) hours before the scheduled meeting. 
	Disruptive Conduct: If any meeting of the District is willfully disrupted by a person or by a group of persons so as to render the orderly conduct of the meeting impossible, a meeting may be recessed or the person or persons willfully disrupting the meeting may be ordered to leave the meeting. Disruptive conduct includes addressing the Board or Committee without first being recognized, not addressing the subject before the Board or Committee, repetitively addressing the same subject, failing to relinquish the podium when requested to do so, or otherwise preventing the Board or Committee from conducting its meeting in an orderly manner. Your cooperation is appreciated.
	7A. - AC - 3 -  RESOLUTION NO 23-1052 ADOPTING RATES.pdf
	ARTICLE 13.10   Cost and Charges for Private Fire Protection
	ARTICLE 14.3 Guarantee Deposit
	ARTICLE 14.5 Basic Monthly Fee
	ARTICLE 14.6 Monthly Water Flow Charges
	ARTICLE 14.10 Cost and Charges for Private Fire Protection





